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Board of Directors
North Marin Water District

Introduction

It is our pleasure to submit the Annual Financial Report for the North Marin Water District for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, following guidelines set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. District staff prepared this financial report. The District is
ultimately responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and the fairness of
presentation, including all disclosures in this financial report. We believe that the data presented

is accurate in all material respects. This report is designed in a manner that we believe necessary

to enhance your understanding of the District's financial position and activities.

This reporl is organized into three sections: (1) Introductory, (2) Financial and (3) Statistical. The
Introductory section offers general information about the District's organization and current
District activities and provides a summary of significant financial results. The Financial section
includes the Independent Auditors' Reporl, Management's Discussion and Analysis of the
District's basic financial statements, and the District's audited basic financial statements with
accompanying Notes and Supplemental Information. The Statistical section includes a ten year
history of financial trends, revenue and debit capacity, demographic, and other operating
information in table and graphical format.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the financial statements in the form of the
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The District's MD&A can be
found immediately after the Independent Auditors' Report.

District Structure and Leadership

The North Marin Water District is an independent special district, which operates under the
authority of Division 12 of the California Water Code. The Norlh Marin Water District has been
providing water service to its customers since 1948. The District is governed by a five-member
Board of Directors, elected at-large from within the District's service area. The General Manager
administers the day-to-day operations of the District in accordance with policies and procedures
established by the Board of Directors. The North Marin Water District employs 66 employees,
some of whom are part-time or temporary. There are currently 32 office positions and 34 field
positions and no vacant positions. The District's Board of Directors meets on the first and third
Tuesdays of each month. Meetings are publicly noticed and citizens are encouraged to attend.

The District provides water service to approximately 61,000 residents in the greater Novato area

through 20,416 service connections. The District also provides water service to approximately
1,800 residents in the Point Reyes service area of West Marin County through 761 service
connections and sewer service to approximately 500 residents in the Oceana Marin service area of
West Marin County through 225 service connections.

I
Drnrcrons: Jncr Bnrrn . Rrcr Fnnres . STEe¡EN PrrrrnLr . DrNNrs RoooNr . JorN C. Sc¡ooNov¡n

O¡¡rc¡ns: CHnrs D¡GngnrELE, Generol Monoger . RENEE Rosrnrs, Secretory . D¡vlo L. BrNrLrv, Auditor-Conlroller . Dntw Mclnrvne, Chief Engineer



Ðistrict Services

The District provides water sel'vice to the gleatel Novato area and to areiìs of \ù/est Mal'in (Point Reyes
Station, Olernn, Bear Valley, luverness Park and Paradise Ranch Estates). Thc Distlict ¡r'ovidcs sr:wt:l'
service to the al'ea o1'Oceana Marin.

Residential custonlers are approxirnately 93c/a of úe District's custolÌler lrase ancl consul]le ap¡rroximaiely
l77a of the water ¡l'oduced annually try the Dlstrict. The District purchases approxirnately B07o of its
water su¡rply florr-r the Sonorna Cìounty Waic:lAgency (Agency) with ihc balancc cJc¡ivccl iì-our ihc
Dlstrict's Stafford Lake lìeservoir. Ìn f iscal year 2009 and 2008, the District purchased ap¡rroxirnately 2.7
billion gallons of rvatel each year t'om the Agency.

Economic Condition, Outlook and Major Initiatives
The District carries out its Mission with a highly-nrotivated and colrpetent stafl'em¡rowered to conduct
the District's business by placing custolrer needs and welf¿r'e frrst. Rach day, l)istrict enrployees stl'ive tcr

c¿ìr'ry out their worh nrinclful of these trasic princr¡rles: Good Water, Goocl Sel'vice, Coocl Value, ¿rncl A
Salè Place to Work.

The Russian River water clelivery system frorn the Agency ty¡lically provides B0% of the District's water
sup¡rly, but continues tcl have liniited ca¡racity ir.r surrrrel urouths. Rainfall in f iscal year'2009 totaled only
20.65" and dry spring conditions resulted in the Sonoma County Water Agency reducirrg lìussi¿rn lìiver
in-stlealn l'lows during suulrel' morrths o1'200B. The Distlict errconraged custoulers to maintain wiìtcr use

at l¿rst year's levels. The District's new St¿rfford Lake watel treatnlent plant was fully utilized to off'set
leduced Russian lìivel su¡r¡rlies with local water supply and thc l)eer Island lecycled water tleatrrent
l'acility (a.joint proiect between the District ancl Novato Sanitaly Distlict) again deliveled highly-tr"eated
recycled wÍìstewater to irrigate Stone'lree Goll' Conlsc'.

A ner.v Restructured Agreernent r.vith the Agency for incl'eased lìussian River lvater l-ras lreen executecl,
but necessaly lìussian Iìiver watel production and clelivery facilrties (pum¡rs and pipelines) have not yet
been constlucted to fLrlfill the contr¿ìct requirements. Competirrg errvironnrental and lislrery-r'elated
interests are delaying the Russian Rivel' water facility developrnenl ancl the District looks forward to
achieving rrol'e water conservation and developrîeut o1' additional recyclecl water to 1i¡úher stletch its
lclcal source ol-supply irr futurc years.

Dry weather pattelns corrtinue with nearly one-hall'the annual rainfall occun'ing in Iìebruary 2009. The
spring of 2009 was one ol'the driest on record with only 3.(rB inches of rainlìll from March tluongh Jnne.
l'he State Water lìesources Control Boald ado¡rted orcJer Wìì2009-0034 on May 28, 2009 requrring a

25Va redlction in Russian River diversions li"om.Iuue l-5 thror"rgh Octolrer'2,2009 corr¡raled to the s¿tnre

peliod irt2004. The State Board also set a watel'consel'v¿rtion goal to achieve a257a reduction in water
use from April 6 thror,rgh October 2, 7009, again corr¡rared to the sanre period in 2004. The Distlrct
declared a watel' shortage ernergency and ado¡rted an Brnel'gency Water Clonservation Ordinance
prohibiting waste ol'watel' to cornply wlth the surrmel 2009 water Llse restrictions inrposed Lry the State
Bo¿rrd. The L)rstlict's wAteL conseLvaticln effclrts continue to be focused on reducing surnnrer waler
derr-rand, which primalily involves outdoor il'r'rgation. The WutcrLl¡z¿ newslettel' w¿ìs agarn published rn

the splir-rg and 1àll. The splrng edition included tips on how tcl leduce sulllr-nel' water deln¿rnd and

descl'i[:ed the District's cul'r'crlt watcrcor]si:rvation llrograÍì'ìs. The District's WatcrConserv¿ltion Plan was
updated and shows that approxirnately 1,100 acre-lèet o1'water is being saved each year.

In West Malin, n<lrnral yeal' water supply conditions on l-agunitas Creek plevailed and custonrers
experienced no water restrictions. Work on long-r'ange implovements continued and replacenrent of the
30,000 gallon Iuveruess Piu'k storage t¿rnk was completed.

At $420 per ye¿u', the cost o1' rvater service for a ty¡rical Nov¿ìto single lamily horne using 121 ,000 gallons
of w¿rtel ¿ì yeal' is the second-lowest of urban area w¿ìter purveyors. W¿rter rerrains a good value l'or
Nclvato custclmers.

2



District Water Supply

StcúTord Lake - Local Sout'ce Provides 20Vo of the District's Supply

Stafford Lake lies four miles west of downtown Novato and collects the runofï from 8.3 square lniles of
watershed land adjacent to the upper reaches of Novato Creek. Tlie lake has a surface area of 230 acres

and holds 4,450 AF (acle-feet) (1,450 MG) of water'. Water from Stafford Lake is f'ed into tlie 6 million
gallons ¡rel day (mgd) treatment plant located just below the dam. In fiscal year 2009 and 2008, 1,55-5 AF
(623 MG) at"td 2,184 AF (712 MG), respectively, o1' watel was produced from the Stafford Lake Water
Treatment Plant.

Russian River - Provides 80Vo of the District's Attnual Supply

Russian River water originates florn both the Eel River and the Russian River watersheds northeast of the

City of Ukiah (Lake Mendocino) and west of Healdsbulg (Lake Sonoma). The Coyote Danr and Lake

Mendocino irnpounds the Eel River diversions and winter runofl'fronr the local watershed. Warm Spl:ings

Dam and Lake Sonoma impound winter runoff from the Dry Creek and Warm Springs local watersheds.

Lakes Mendocino alrd Sonoma combined cau store 367,500 acre fèet to meet the regiolts' watel'supply
needs. Releases from the lakes flow to a point about l0 rniles upstream of Guerneville where six dee¡l

Ranney Collector wells collect river water that has been l'iltered through 60 to 90 feet of natural sand and

gravel to perlblated pipes located at tlie bottorr of each well. The thick layer of sand and gravel through

which the water lrust pass before reaching tlie intake pipes plovides a highly-efficient, natural filtration
process which, with chlorination treatment, ¡rroduces a clear, potable, bacteria-free water. This water is
then fed dircctly into the Agency's aqueduct system.

Irr fiscal year 2009 and 2008, the District received 8,380 AF (2,731 MG) and 8,417 AF (2,'762 MG),
respectively, of Russian River watel'. The Distl'ict has an agleement in place with the Agency to provide
sufficient supply and nreet the District's current and future water supply needs. There continues to be

competing interests for Russian Rivel' water, principally to protect steelhead and salmon listed under the

Endangered Species Act. There is still much work to do in Sonoma County to build necessary pum¡rs and

pipelines to import the future deliveries. The District continues to actively support the necessary

development of the Russian River water supply and protection of the Russian River ftsheries.

Internal Control Structure
Distlict lxanagemeltt is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the intel'nal control structure

that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft ol misuse. The internal control
stl'ucture also ensuLes that adequate accountiug data is cornpiled to allow for the pre¡raration of l'inancial

statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting pnnciples. The Distl'ict's internal contl'ol

stl'ucture is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of'

reasonable assurauce recognizes that (l) the cost ofacontrol should not exceed the benefits likely to be

derived, and(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estinrates and judgrnents by managelïetlt.

Budgetary Control
The District Board of Directors annually adopts an operating and capital budget prior to the new fiscal
year. The budget authorizes and provides the basis fbr reporting and contlol of financial operatiolls and

accountability for the Distl'ict's enterprise operations and capital plojects. The budget and reporting
treatn-ìent applied to the District is consistent with the accrual basis of accounting and the financial
statement basis.

Investment Policy

The Board of Directors has adopted an investment policy that confonns to state law, Distl'ict oldinance
and resolutions, prudent money rnanagernent, and the "prudent person" standards. Tlie objective of the

lnvestment Policy is safety, maturity and yield. District funds are invested in tlie State Treasurer's Local
Agency Investment Fund, and during the fìscal year the District purchased certificates of deposit from
local banks and held U.S. Treasuries and col'porate nredium-tern-ì llotes through ìts custodial trustee Union
Bank ol'Californla.
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Water ïl.atcs and Ðistrict llevenues

lìevenue ft'ol.n user charges generated lì'orn District custol.ners slìllpol't Drstl'ict operations. Accordingìy,
water and sewer l'ates ale revieled periodrcally. Watel' and sewer rates al'e user charges im¡rosed on
custolrers lbl'serviccs and ¿rre the plirlary corr¡ronent o1'the Distl'ict's t'evellue. Water l'ates iìl'e
cotn¡rosed of ¿r courrodity (usage) chalge iuld a l'ixed lri-rlonthly service charge; whereas, sewer l'¿ìtes arel

cornposed plimarily of a f ixed nrorrthly charge.
/t.,1:+ ^.--l f¡:..^*-,:.,1 lì^^^-¿:--^äuu¡r drrt l' rtr¿rrrL r<tr r\ulrerl tttt¡í

Statc Law altd Bond Çovc'.rlanfs lequil'e tlir: District tr¡ obtairi an annn¿rl audit of its financial stateurerrts by
an indepenclent Certified Public Accountant. The accounting f irnr of Charles Z. Fedak & Conrpany,
CPAs has conducted the audit of the Distlict's l'inancial statenrents. Their unqualified Independent
Auditor''s lìe¡rolt ¿ìppears in the liinallcial Sectiou.

Risk Managenrent

Tlie District ts sell'-insured f'or general liability clairns u¡r to the l'irst flìl.0 nlillion and has establisliecl a

cotttingettt liability account to set aside resources lbl such pulposes. The Distl'ict pul'ch¿ìsLìs coul.net'cial
il.lsuratrce coverage l'or propel'ty and equi¡rnrent, fidelity bonds, ¿rutomobile liability, and general liability
iu excess of its self'-insLrr¿ulce limit. lncun'ed and unpaid clainrs, il'any, are accrued as a liability when it is
¡l'obable that att asset lras lrcen irrpaired and the arnount ol'the clbligation carr be reasollably e stinrated.

A wards a¡rd Acl<nowlcd geinrents
'fhis is the f irst year that the Distlict is sulrrlitting its Consolidated Annual Financial lìeport (CAtrR) for
tlre Govenrtncnt Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada's (GF-OA) CertiJ'i<'ute rl
Achievemutt,/itr E.xcellcut:e in liinunciul Il.e¡tortin.g. To be awardecl a Certi{'icate of Achieventent, A

goven.ìntelttal unit trust ¡ruLriish an easily readable and el'ficiently organized CIAIrìì.'l'he l'eporf l.nust
.,,,¡i.,I.,L^rl-^^-^^-.-.ll-.-.-.,--^.^l-.-^^----¡:-----,-:--^:--l- --l --l:- ll-r I 'scrusrJ uuur BL'ilur¿ilry itLLcl)rcLt uLc()ultuilg l)t iltL tl)tËs uilu iìlrliltLiil)tc lcgat tuqUIlciltcill\,
A Cel'tif icate o1'Achieverrent is valld fot' a peliod of one year'. We believe that this CAI-R nleets the
Certil'icate ol'Achievenrent Prograur's requileurents and we al'e subnrittlng it to the GFOA to determine
its cligibility lor 1009.

Preparation ol'this report was accomplished by the combined cflbrts of Dlstrict stal'l'. We a¡rpl'eciale the
dedicated el'l'ofts and ¡rrolèssion¿rlisln lhat these stal'l'l.nerlbel's contribr¡te to the Distlict. We would alscr
like to thank the rnernbels o1' the lloard of Directors fbr their continued support in yrlanning ancl
implementation ol'thc NolTh Mal'in Water I)istrict's l'iscal policles.

Iìespectli I ly su [rrni tted,

/Ì1""
, ,i.\,
\-,-.r'L r-L-Ì

J

I'r'r '-
" .--åJ.,/ À *\

Chris Deûnbri*l
üen*natr h{anae¿r

Bentle¡'
Audit*r-C*ntro!!sr
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North Marin Water District
Organization Chart

June 2009

r-rt

Operations (6)
Maintenance (7)

Water Qual¡ty (4.8)
Tectrnical Assistant (1 )

OperationslMai ntenance
RobertClaft {19.8)

Construction/Maintenance
Doug Moore (13)

Large Crew (5)
Small Crew (4)

Transmission & Distribulion (3)

Distric{ Secretary
Renee Roberts'

Administrative Assistant (1)

VOTERS

Board of Directors

General Manager

Chris DeGabriele*

AttomeY
Robert Maddow

Bold. Polisner, Maddow et al

Engineering
Drew Mclntyre* (9.7)

Engir¡eering Services (1.7)
Desígn Servioes f/)

Water Conservation (1)

AccountÌng & Warehouse (4.6)
Billîng & Customer Service (4.3)

Field Services (3)

Adñ¡n¡stration/Fl nance
David L Bentley* (12.9)

*Also serves âs D¡stfict offioer
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Charle s Z. Fedak & Company 6081 Orange Avenue
Cypress, California 90630
(714) 527-1818
(562) 598-6565
FAX (714) s27-9154
EMAI L czfco @czfcpa.com

Certif ied Public Accountants
An Accountancy Corporation

Charles Z. Fedak, CPA, MBA

Paul J. Kaymark, CPA

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the North Marin Water District (District) as of and for
the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as

listed in the table of contents. These basic financial staternents are the responsibility of the District's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govenunent Auditing Standards, issued by

the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respective financial position of the North Marin Water District as of June 30,2009 and 2008, and the respective

changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated August 31,2009, on our

consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that

testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That

repoft is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be

read in conjunction with this repoft in considering the results of our audit. This report can be found on page 58.

Management's discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information on page 30 are not required

parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted primarily of inquiries

of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplemental information.
However, we did not audit this information and express no opinion on it. Our audits were conducted for the

purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District's basic financial
statements. The accornpanying Combining Statements in the supplemental information section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary

information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements

and, in our opinion, are stated fairly in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a

whole.

The accompanying introductory section and statistical information section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical

information section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it

August 31,2009
Cypress, California

7
lVember of American lnstitute of Certifìed Public Accountants . California Society of Certified Public Accountants
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North Marin Water District
M anage nte nt's Dis cus sion and Anøly sis

For the Years Bnded.Iune 30.2009 and 2008

Tlie following Managernent's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance

of the North Marill Water District (District) provides an introduction to the f inancial statenrents of the

District for the fiscal yeals ended June 30, 2009 and 2008. We eucourage readers to collsider tlre
information presented here in conjunction with the tlansmittal letter in the Introductory Section and with
the basic f inancial statelnents and related notes, which follow this sectioll.

Financial Highlights

o The Distlict's net assets decleased 8.'7(/o ot'$7,036,ó14 to $73,283,116 it"t fiscal year'2009. In
2009, the Distl'ict re-evaluated its capital asset depreciable lives and expensed an approxirlately
$7.7 nlilliou non-cash charge to depreciation expense due to the District's change in the

accounting estim¿rte fol depreciation. In 2008, the Dish'ict's net assets increased 6.4% or
$4,8.55,829 to $80,3 1 9,790.

o lrr 2009, the District's opelating reveuues increased 6.3Va ot'S'147,131 due primarily to a 4Va

decrease in water sales volunre coupled with an 1l%¡ rate incl'ease in Septernber 2008 and a207o
rate iucrease in.June 2009. In 2008, the District's operating revenues decreased 0.60/o or $68,880
due to a'77a decl:;r"te in water sales volume offset by a highel'late for non-residential custolners.

o In 2009, the District's operating expenses before de¡rreciation increased 5.77a ot' $718,132 due to
a $621,480 inclease in ex¡rensed improvelnent ¡rroject costs and a$178,314 inct'ease in source of
supply expenses. In 2008, the District's operating expenses before depreciatiott decreased 0.17o

or $16,996 due to lower water pl'ocurement cost offset by incl'eases in water treatment costs

during the fiscal year.

Required Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets, Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and Statenent of Cash Flows provide inlornration about
the activities and ¡rerfolurauce of the District using accounting nretlrods sinrilar to those used by private

sector compauies.

The Staternent of Net Assets includes all of the District's invc'stlnents in resources (assets) and the
obligations to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating
the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity ¿rnd financial flexibility of the District. All
of the cut'rent year's revenue and expenses are accouuted lbr in the Staterrent of Revenues, Expenses and

Chauges in Net Assets. This staternent rneasures the success of tlle Distl'ict's operatiotts ovet'the past

year and can be used to determine i1' the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its
rates and other charges. This staterrent can also be used to evaluate ¡rrofitability and credit woÍhiness.
The final required financial statement is the Statenrent of Cash Flows, which plovides information about
the District's cash receipts and c¿rsh ¡rayrnents during the reporting peliod. The Statement of Cash Flows
reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting h'om operations, investil.tg, non-

capital financing, and ca¡rital and related financing activities and provides answers to such questions as

where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the

reporting period.

Financial Analysis of the District

One of the most important questions asked about the Distlict's finances is, "ls the District better ofï or
worse off as a result of thts year's activities?" The Staternent of Net Assets and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets report information about the District in a way that helps

answer tlris question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the ur:crual busis rfi'
tuct:ounting, which is sinrilar to the accounting used by rnost private sectol companies. All of the current
yeiìr's t'eveurìes and expenses are taken into account regardless of when the casll is received or paid.

I



North Marin W¿lter District
Mana.gentent's l)iscussion and Analysís

For the Years Bnded Junc 30,2009 and 2008

Tlrese two stater.uents le¡rolt the District's ncl d,\seÍs and chauges in them. You car.l think ol'the District's
net assets - the dll.lcrence lretween ¿ìsscìts ancl liabrlities * as one way to l1'ìe¿ìsure the District's l'inancial
lrealtll, ol.firtunciul ¡to.tiliort. Over tirne, ittcrettst's t¡r decreuse.r in the District's rìet ¿ìssets ¿ìre one
indicator ol'whether its.f inuut:iul heulth is improvrng or detefiorating. Horvever, one will need to colrsider
other llon-l'inancial l'actclrs such as changes in econollic conditions, ¡ropulation glowth, new ot' changed
goven.ìrrenl legislafion or':rccounlirt¡ slrurcìitrds, as well as changes in Federal ¿rnd Statr.: rr¡atr-¡l quality
standards.

Notes to the Iìasic Irinancial State¡nents

Íhe basic financial staternents. The notes to the basic l'inancial stateurents car.ì bc'l'ound on pagcs 17

thlough 39.

Statement of Net Assets

Clondensed Statcnrr:nts ol Nct Ässcts

2Ul9 2m8 (lhangc 211{.17 Changc

As scls:
(lurcnt âsscts

N (ìrì-ctì n tlìt iìsscts

Clapital ¿rsscls. nct

fot¿l asscts

I-inbi lìtics:
Cullcnt lìahilitrr's
Non-culrcrìt liahi lit ics

'l'otal liabilities

Nct irsscts:

Nct i0vcstrncnl in ca¡ri{al asscts

Iìostrictc(l liu trapitaì l)rl).iccts and clcbt solvicc
l.l n rcstri c: t crl

Ï'otal llel assets

Ï'otal liabilities ând rìet asscfs

:t' 9,43r.ì.rì93
(;,I 77,592

tì2.0U).722

10,1 19,617

rì.()77 ,()!I)
85,4 13,49r

( I ,2¡lo,7rì4)
( 1,899.498)
(3,4(Xr,7(r9)

8,s5r,863
r 1,9r8,9(;0

19.377.O40

2, 1 67,8 t4
(3,1.1'1 I ,u70)
6,036,4.s I

()7.(rl.ì.1O7 I01.ll0.l.5t{ (6,587,051) 99,847,lJ63 4.362,3 9.5

:3,450.972

20,tì I't9,0.59

3.4 I 2.0rìó
20.471ì.3 ri2

3u.1ì ti6

4 t0.611
.l,9tìl.Ì.4 t7

20,39.s,485

(s76.3 3 r )

rJ2.13 97

24.340.03r 23.rJ90.46rJ 449.563 24.31i3.902 1493.434J

6 I ,057.5.5 I

,1.:l()1,331

1.921 .294

(¡5.099.1,163

4.1 43,t94
10.476.733

(4,042,3 12)

(4.1¡r,rì63 )

(2,5 55,4 39 )

59,290.2 84

4.994.444
r r.r79.233

5,1109.5 79

(25 | .250)
(702.5(X) )

73,2113, r76 tj0,3 19,79{) (7,036,6 I4) 75.463.9(rl 4.r,ì5.5,ti21l

$ 97,(¡23,207 104.2 l(),251i (r,.5tì7.051) 99,1ì47,tì63 4,.1(r2,39.5

As noted earlier, net assets rìlay serve ovel tinle as a useful indicator of:a govenlu'ìenf's f inancial position.
In thc c¿tse of the District, assets ol'the I)istrict exceeded liabilities by It73,283,176 and $80,319,790 as of
June 30, 2009 and 20011, respectively.

Ìly làr the lalgest poltic'rrt o1'the Distlict's net assets (837c and 81c/r, its o1'June 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively) reflects the District's invesl.lnent in ca¡rital assets (Íìet of accumul¡rtecl cle¡rreciation) less any
relilted clebt used to acquire those assets that rs still outstanding. The Distlict uses these capital ¿ìsse1s to

¡rlovide services to ct¡stolllels within the District's service alea; couseclLlently. thcsc assets are tutt
availatrle l'or liture sperjdi r.ìg.

At the end o1'fìscal year 2009 and 2008, the District showed a posltive lralance in its unrestlicted net
assets of $1,921,294 and fì10,47(r,733, respectively. See note l3 for the amount ol'spendable rìet assets
that may be utrlized in future years.

9



North Marin Water District
M anagenle tú's Dis c us sion and An aly sis

For the Years Bnded.lune 30.2009 and 2008

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Cr¡ndensed Statements of llerelrues, llx¡rense nud Changes in Nct Assets

2009 2m8 Clhansc 2Ul7 Change

Iì evcnu cr:

Opclating Leverìue

Non<rpclating lc\/enue

l'ot¿rl levenue

Ex¡rense:

O¡relating cxpense

l)eplecialion ancl anr<r'ti zation
Non-ollcrating r:xl)ensc

'l'otal ex¡rerrsc

Net inc¡rme bel'ore ca¡rital corrtributiolrs

Capital contlibutions

Churge in net assets

Net irssefs, begirruing of yenr

Prior' ¡reriotl ad.ius trnentr^

Net assets, end ol'year

5; t2,526,294
(r59,684

I .1, tt{.5,97ri

I I ,171) ,157
9 19,920

12.699,07',7

1 41 .13'7

(2d),236)
I I ,848,037

I ,'t 61 ,917

(68,1ì 80)
(fi41 ,991)

4tì(r,901 1 3,(r 15,954 (9 r6.rì77)

t3,251 ,t25
t().091.139

650,7 30

23.998,994

12.538,993

I ,'l6t ,673
722.7ff)

I18,t32
8,3 29.4 (16

('7 |,e79)

I 2,5 55,9tì!)

1.490,01',7

5 89,1 71ì

( 16,996)

21t ,596
t33,531

I 5.023,37-5 8,975,619 14,615,244 3tiì¡ì,t31

( I 0.8 r3.0 l6) (2324,298)

7,06t.891

(tì,4rJrì,7 l8)

(.3.2rìs,489)

( l ,o 19,290)

1ì,(r39,03I

(r,30s,(n8)

(r,577,r40)3,'776,402

(7 ,03(r,(r l4 )

80.3 19,7q)

4;731 ,593

15,463,961

I lfì,236

(t t.1'74,207)

4,85.5,829

( il 8,236)

7 ,619,141

71,314,792

(3,410,512)

( l 9,393,94r3)

4,149,t69

3,352,336

rh 71,283,176 tì0.3 I9,7!À) (7,036,6 14) 75,4(r3,9(rl (l I,892,443)

The statement of revenlles, expenses and chauges of llet assets shows how the District's lret assets

changed during the flscal years. ln the case ofthe l)istrict, net assets decreased by $7,036,614 in the fiscal
year ended.lune 30, 2009 and increased by $4,855,829 for the fiscal yeal ended June 30, 2008.

A closer examiÍìatiou of the sources of chaltges ilt ltet assets reveals that:

In 2009, the District's opelating l'evenues increased 6.3Vo ol$141,137 due primarily to aAVa decrease in

water sales volume coupled with an llVorate increase in Septernber 2008 anda20o/a rate increase in June

2009. In 2008, the District's opelating revennes decl'eased 0.6Vo ot' $68,880 due to aTVa declit-te in water
sales volume offset by a higlrel rate for llon-residential customers.

In 2009, the District's opelating expenses lrefore deprecration increased 5.JVo ol$718,132 due to a

$621,480 increase in expensed improvernent ploject costs and a 5118,374 increase in source of supply

expenses. ìn 2008, the District's operating expenses before depreciation decleased 0.lo/o or $16,99(r due

to lower water pl'ocurement cost olïset by increases in water tl'eatment costs durillg the fiscal year.

ln 2009, the District re-evaluated its caprtal asset depreciable lives and experrsed an approxirnately lì7.7
million uon-cash charge to depreciation expense due to the District's cllallge in the accoultting estitnate
for de¡rreciatiorr.
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Norttrr N{arin Water District
M an a.g ente rú's I)i s c us sio n. atñ An aly sis

For the Years llnded June 30,2009 ¿rnd 2008

Total District Revenues

Opcraling rc\,ouucr:
W¡ler c0nsllnllllion siìlcs

IJr-¡Dùil(ìlly rìra:tL.r sùr\i(c clìitrltL:

Scu'cr scrvicc clrrrgcs
U/,',.r,,"r..'r'.ri,.' r'i'\'l',,"..,"'.."¡.

( )th!'r chiìrg('s liltl servic.'s

'¡blrl 0llcÌ?ì(irìl¡ rc\ cnuet

Nort-opcrating revcrìr¡cs:

l)rt¡reit1, f ar relcrrrc
i¡rvcrilrc¡ri e¿rurirgs

lì!ìrì1rl I !'\'rlìU0
(ì)Dstruction liì\,-\uil stlllcnldrl
(ìrin or saJc/r1is¡rosiliorì of aiìl)iliìl iìrsels
Olhcr DtD-rrpcritlìng r¿\'crì[cs

'lìttitl non-o¡rcrating rcvctrucs

'lÌrf¿¡l rcYt'nucs

2009 20011 Ch¿tngc _ ?q!lz. , _CìUtngiì, .

I (1.573.3(rlt

I .5rJ r ..107

t.+7.9 I 8

207.533

9.607.:+()0

| .,r2.1.628

r.1ó.641

3(.t:1.J(,r8

205.999

9.693. I 0J
r..+ t2.42n

l,+5.ô{).5

I90.0tì7

965.1r78

I 56.779

1.216

l..s3.l

(lì5.(ì I4)
I 2.1(Xl

I .()17

t.5.9 t ?

((t¡i,llli0)

12.2)0
( i lo.oiji)

t.012
(627.195 )

2.l5ll
( 109.s.50)

(¡ì.+7.9q7)

(9 I 6.877)

ll.5ló.19.1 77\i. I 57il 1.11,131 I l,lÌ.lti,u-.17

97 .9 l()

¡i15.79\j
-lii. I (r I

617.195

20..5{)9

l,+8. t:ì4

I .161 .911

t3.6t5.954

I 03.630

4 i i.ó¡ì i

52.06 I

I t0.ll9
(i9!). i07

;19.233

(r)..199 )

( lli5.-i2h )

2.ll2ll

si t:ì. I tì5.97fì t1.6\)9.O'7'.t

( 22.tì67 )

I IJ28
( 1160.2361

4llf .90I

22.1ì67

l8.ss490.3 I2

659.6tÌ4 9 r 9.920

ln 2009, as notecl pleviousl)/, total District o¡rc-ratirtg rcvcrìuc increased itr 2009 lìonl 200tì due prinrarily
to a4%; decrease in water sales vohure coupled with an ll(/o rate inclease in Septerrber 2008 tt"td a20Vo
rate incl'casc in.lunc 2009.

ln 2008, as noted previously, total District opelating revenue held steady in 2008 li'oni 2007; however',
nor.ì-ollerating rt:verìuLì dcclined due to ¿ì reduction in mark-to-nlarl(et gains on the District's portf olio and
the District receivir.rg $627,395 l'or the constnìction Iawsuit settlerÌlent in 2007.

Total District fìx¡renses

2009 2008 Changc 20117 Chtngc

Operittin¡¡ cxpenses:
Sorrrcc ol'su¡r¡rl¡,
l)rnr¡ring

Willer lilci lilics ollLr rt jor)¡^

Wâter trctlnlL'rìt
'll irns¡Ìis-sior rurd ilistribrrtioD
Scwagc c,rllectiorr rrtl lreatlre¡rt
(luslo¡rrr'r servicc

Gcleral anrl âdìriììistr¡li\ (
lrììllìr)\ ùtìeììl I)tr)iLrcls
\,Va(cr conscrvatior l)11)iecLs

Or,¡rheatl rbsrl ¡ttion
I )c¡rrccirtion iurtl alrorlìzal iol

'l'rf rl o¡rcrlling cxpenscs

Non-o¡rcraling exl)srses:
lillercsl c\l)erìse - lorrg-lcrrn rlcbt

Wolller/(Ìrllcctr¡ No. (r agrccnrcll
Loss on srlc/tlis¡tosif iorr ol' cr¡titaì rsrets
( )lllLt niljtr,PLt.lli¡li L \lìr.lr\(.\

'lìrtal non-o¡rcralitrg cxpcnscs

'lÌfal expcrrses

8.329.466

_ 25.1.600

f'

$ 21.3.1.1J.2(r4

3.7rì2.4 r.+

379.3,+ I

506.2Ii7
I .69ti.7¡i I

2.3 [ì_s.742

tì4.4 I 8

.+6(i,30 I

I .90{). I ó9
I ..17.5. 193

359.7'+8
(49!).,10 I )

I .761 .ô73

l.+.10(1.ô66

't22,10e

l 5.023.375

9.047.59fì

3.960.7u 8

339.2.16

57 r{.¡i6l{

I .71ì | .5 t6
2.:13.s.067

911.7 t5

505.2 ilr
r.943.522

I .51i9.,+ li
507.260

(3ri2.471ì)

I0.09t.119

t7lì.17,1
(4{). I 05 )

72.51ì I

i12.735

( 50.67.s )

t 4.2tfl
38.9 t7
+3.35:ì

I 1 4.220

111 .5 t2
I I 6.921

.1..s t3.365

38 r.725

5 I lì.99(r

I..l(.r3.083
I lìl I to

71r.128

-17,+.082

1.li35.6(17

t..s33.477

283.242
(5lilJ.32'+)

r .490.(177

I ¡1.046.(ì(t6

(730.9s r )
(2.31Ìl)

( I 2.7()i))
395.698
I 63.391

6.0(.xl

(7,7¡ìl )

64.502
(51ì.21J,1. )

?6.506
8rJ.92l

27 I .596

5r3.3t4
I I0.2.1(r

.5 t9.4u.+

¡ l,l.6ri2
rJ7.2 r 4

I .129

(6. I70.)

(4.,136)

(ij7.2 I 4 )

25.84 I

4 t I.543

I 7?.635

107.94 I

I I4.6t]2
(90.421 )

I .32e21.17¡')

6.50.730

.5 23.99IJ.994

(Ì 1.91r)

8.975.6 l9

589.17fì i 33.53 r

14.63.5.24,1 3lJtl. l3 I

ln 2009, as noted pleviously, total Distl'ict opelaling exl)L'rìses increased due plirnarily to rn illcrease in
purch¿ìsed water costs o1'fil6l,2Bl, higher lab costs of 1868,409 and higher replacelrent and enhancerrent
costs tlf fì 167,436

In 2008, as noted previously, total Dis(rict operaling cxl)enses increased due to ¿ì decrease in watel'
procurelltent (source of su¡rply) costs which were olìl'set by increases in watertre¿tnlent, tl'ansrnissi<ln ancJ

clistribution, and depreciation cx¡renses. Also, intelest expense incl'eased as wr:ll.

ll



North Marin Water District
Man.agemen.t's Discu.ssi ott ønd Analysis

Iìor the Years Ended June 30.2009 and 2008

Capital Asset Administration

At the end of fiscal year'2009 and 2008, the Distlict's investment in capital assets anloltnted to
582,006,122 and $8.5,413,491, respectively, (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital

assets includes: land, transmission and distlibution systems, reservoirs, tattks, pulxps, btrildings and

stl'uctul'es, equiplnent, vehicles and construction-in-progress, etc. (See Note 8 for furthel' infornration)

Clrangcs in capital ¿ìssel arnounls 1ìlr 200!) wero as lbllows:
Ilalance '['r¿ulsl'crs/ Iìalancc
2008 Additions Deletions 20119

Capital assets:

Non-dcpleciable assets

Deplcciablc assets

Accumulatccl dcprcciation ancl antoltization

Total capilal iìsscts, nct

Capital asscts:

Non-cleplcciablc asscts

Deplcciable assets

Accr"rnruìaled clepleci ation ancl alnorti zation

Tolal capital asscts, r.rcl

L(xrg-tcfrx dcbl:
Bonds payablc

Loans ¡rayable

Total long-telrn clcbt

Long-tclm clob{:

Bonds lrayable
Loans payable

Total long{crnl clcbt

$ 8,613,432
98,534.472

(21,734,4t3\

(fi.7rìr,6r0)
(194.133)

t94.133

3.34rì.719

t2,t17,26t
3. l rì0,54 1

r t0,457.000
(3 r .630,8 r9)( r0,09 t, I 39)

$ 8.s,4 I 3,49 I 5,374,841 (8.78r .ó r0) 82,006,722

Changes in ca¡ri1aì âsset anìoillts lbr 2(X)8 wcle as lirìlorvs:
Ilalance

20117 Additions
l'ransfers/
Dcletions

Ilalance
200fì

$ 12,87 t,t25
86,540.765
20,034,850)

2,984,826
12,142,t5t
(1,761,613)

(7,242,519)
(148,444')

(r2.ll0

8,6 t 3,432

98,534,4'72
(2t.134.413)

í 19,3'Ì7,040 13,3ó5,304 328,853) 8s,41 3,49 rQ,

Debt Administration

Changes in long-tclm debl amot¡nts lìrl the ycal wr:ro as ftrllows:
Ilalance

2008 Additions
Principal
Pavrnents

Ilalance
2009

335,801

19,97'7,821

$ 20,31 3,628

Clrangcs in long-tclrn clcbt aurounts l'ol thc yeal wcre ûs lìrllows
Iìalance

2007

$

tt32,665

r t? (), ?\

(1'74,t99)
3 t2,¡ì7u

20,636,21)3

832.665

Adclitions
Principal
Payments

llalallcc
200(t

(191,122) 20,949.171

$ 363.s93

19,723,163

(21.792)
(374.211)

-33-5,80I
19,911,82762tì,urì I

fi 20,086,7.56 62rì.8tì I (402,009) 20.3 r 3,62tì

(See Note 12for further debt sel'vice lnformation)

Requests fbr Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District's fundirrg sources, custorners, stakeholders ¿rnd

other interested pal'ties with an overview of the District's financial operations and financial condition.
Should the reader have questiorrs regarding the information included in this report ot' wish to request

additional financial information, plearse contact the Distl'ict's Auditor-Controller at 999 Rush Creel< Place,

Novato, California 94945 * (41 5) 891-4133.
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North Marin Water District
Statements of' Net Assets
.fune 30,2009 and 2008

Ass¿/s 2(X)9 200lt

Ctn'r'ùnt iìsscts:

Clsh and clsh cc¡rivalcnts (note 3)

Iìestliclcd - cash ancl cash cc¡rrivulc:nts (n()trr 3)

Acc:r'r¡cd i ntclcst rrìtìci\/lìblc
At:ctrttnts ltrc:civ¿rblc - w¿ì[Lìr tìl]d scu,cr salcs ltncl se t'\'iLìcs

Accounls lcccivlblc - go\/cr'rlntcntiìì agcncics

Ac:cot-tn ts ILìcLri vtìlllL: .- othcl'

Notc leceivablc lllack l)oint Goì1'l.,inks - culrclll llorlion (nolc 5)
Notcs leceivablc - cmpÌoycc colìuutcl ìoans (rlotc ó)

Ìr,irttt'r'ilri s rrttd stt ¡r¡ri ies i rì\ r'tìt{ rt )
Plc¡lrid cxpcrlscs ancì dcposils

T(f iìl culrcnt asscts

N()n-cur'r'clìt lìssct s:

Invcslnlcnt:; (nolc 3)

lìcsl|ictcd - inVcstr]lcnts (notrr 3)

lntclnal lralanccs (note 4)
Notcr lcr:civublc - lllack Poiltt Coll l,inks (notc 5)

Notcs leccivrblc -.cmltloyec housing irssisltrnt:c louns (nrttc 7)

Clpitll lssct.s, not lrcing cìoplccialcd (n()tc 8)

l)cplccilbìc crllitrl asscts. nct (notc 8)

Tol ¿ll non-c:ullcnt iìsscts

'iirlirl ¿rsscis

Liabililies and Nel Assets

$

$

?.011,521

2.444.28t1

.srì.325

2.6tì0,031

307.378

r 2rJ.603

t7tì,.560

4. 1.1{r

5äìi.4!.,!)

31.546

5,293. r t5
1.063,ó46

t44,58ó
2,5-s0,603

59().t36ó

226.514
t't4,332

tl. I (r4

()J4, J 7 5

33.476

9.43IJ,tì93 10,1t9.6't7

2.084.755

/?ll lr/-¡\

3.b133,318

3,074.612
879.2(X)

ti.613.432
76.r100,059

2.896.052

l .196,7rì5
3, r lì0,.54 r

78.tì2(r, llì I

88.1 tì4,314 93,490,-581

i' 97,ô23,207 104.21 0,251ì

(lLrllcnl liabilitics:
Accorìnts payablc rrrd acclr¡ctl cxl)ctìscs

Accluccl wagcs aircl lclatcd payablcs

AcclLrcd cÌainrs ¡rayublc (nolc 9)
('ustomcr arlvanccs lnd dc¡rosits

Acclucd inlc¡lcsl paylblc - long-tcrx dcl)t

l-ong-tclnr liabiÌitics - cluc rvilhin onc yciìt'

Conrpcnsrterl ubscnccs (notc I 0)

Iloncls ¡rayable (notc l2)
l-uans ¡rayablc (nrxc l2)

Totlìl cur'r'cnt liubilitics

Non-crrllcnt liabilitics:
Lor.rg-lclrl liubilitics - tlr¡c in lllol'c lhnlt onc yctìt :

Compcnsatctl ¿rbscnces (ntltc I0)
Posl cnr¡rloymcnl bcncf its ¡lt¡,ublc (notc I |)
lìontls ¡rayrblc (llot.c 12)

Loans payablc (nott: l 2)

'l'otal nru-culr'ùnt liabililics

lÌrtal liabilities

Nct rssets: (note l3)
lnvcstmcnt in capitll asscls, ncl o1'r'cl¿rtccl dcbl

Iìcstl'iclcd lìrl capÌtrl plo jccts anci rlebt scl vicc
t J nrcstli cted

'l'otal ncl ¿rssets

'lÌrtal liabilitics ¿rnd nel as¡-cts

I,lìtt5,.stt.s

36 I .9(Xr

I 4,400
.523.6tì2

ló.8 rtì

| ,842,2 t5
298,t47

24.551
e52.75 I

6.731

90.563
1) ()1?

1'74.t99

101.110

30.(Xr9

5t6.142

3.450.972 3,4 t 2,086

20,I t9

27 i .6¡.ìu

90, ì8rì
3 t2.tì7rì

19,t303.628

30.5,3 I ( )

I 8I ,3rì9

282.809

5r

20,13r.ì9,059 20,478,382

24.340,031 23.rì90.4ólì

61,057,-s5 r

4.304,33I
7,921,294

6.5.099.U63

4.7 43,194
t0,416.733

73.283.1'76 rì0,3 t9.790

f' 97,623,207 104.210,258

Sec ucconr¡rrnying lìolcs lo lhr: busic financiul st0tùlltc]lts
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North Marin Water District
Statements of llevenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 200tt

Opor'ating Lcvenucs:

WalcI consurn¡rtion sales

Bi-rnonthly rnetel selvicc chalgc
Scwcl sclvicc chrlgcs
Watel cunscrvatior-r lcinrtrulscnrcnts
()tltt'r'chirrgcs untl sct viccs

Total opelati ng l'evenucs

Operating cxpenses:

Soulcc o1'supply
Pumping
Walcr' 1 acil ities o¡relations
\üalcl trcatnlcnt
Tl'ansurission and di stribution
Sewagc collcction itncì tlcatmcnt

Cnstonrcl sert,icc

Gcnclal ¿ind adnrinistlative
I nr¡r'ovcrrrr'rrl pr'oiccl s

wiltcr c()tìscr'\'trlion ¡r'rricels

Total o¡rerating oxpcnses

Opclaling loss lrolìl'c overhcacl absolption
( )vt'r'lrcrrtl ubsor'ptiort

()pclating loss belble clcpl'cciation rnd amtl tizatirrn

l)eplccialion (notc I 9)

Opelating loss

Non-opelating levenucs(cxpcnscs) :

Plopcrty lax lcvelìuc

Ìnvcstr¡ent calnings
lìcntâl levenuc

lntelcst cxpensc - long-tclm dcbt
Wohlcr/Collcctor No. (r agrcenlcllt (notc l8)
I-oss on salc/dispositiou of'capital tsscts. nel

Othcl non-o¡rclaling lcvcnut:s, nct

Total non-o¡rclating lcvcnues, nct

Net loss belirre ca¡rital c<lntributions

Cìapital contli butions:
l)evclopels and othels
Connection l'ces

Capital contl'ibutions

Changc in net assets

Net assets, beginning o1'year'

ì)r'iol pcliocl adjuslmcnt (notc 2)

Ncl asscts, end o1'ycar'

$ r0,573,368
I ,-581 .407

147,91 1l

l(r,0ó8
207,-s33

9.607.490

t.424,628
t46,642
394,39rì

205,999

12.526.294 I I ;779 ,t 57

3,96(),788

339,23ó

578,868

t,781,51ó
2,33.s,0ó7

98,7 r 5

505.2rr1

t.943.522
I ,-589,41 3

507,2(r0

3,782,414
3'79,341

506,2117

r.698,781

2.385,742

84,4r8
466.30I

I ,900, r 69

| ,47 5 ,lL)3

359,74tÌ

13,038,39413,639,í)3

(l,r r3,309)
382,4711

(t .259,237)
499,401

( r0,B2r ,970) (2,s21 ,509)

(730,1ì31)

(r0,09r.r39)
(7s9,836 )

( 1,7ó I ,{r73)

63 142

I 10.t29
(r99.1 07

49.233
(5 r9,484)
(ll4,6tì2)

(64,34"7\

37,255

8,954 197.21|

(10.tìl3,or6) (2,324,298)

103.630

4l 3.68 I

52,061
(sr3,314)
( I 10,24(r)

2.830,488

945.914
5,546,285

I .-s l-5,d)6

3;776,402 7.06t.tì91

(7.036.614)

1t0.3 t9,790

4;/37,593

7 5.463,961

I lrì,236

$ 73,2ft3,17ó 80,3 r9,790

See acconrpanying notcs to (hc basic financial stâtelÌcllts

14



North Marin Water DistrÍct
Statements ol Cash Flows

Iror the Years llnded .Iune 30.2009 ancl 2008

2009 2008

(lush I'lou,s llunr o¡rturrling irr:livilit:s:
Clsh leceipts lìtrnl custonrels lìl u,trtc'l sltlcs lncl scrr'ìccs

Cash paitl to em¡rloyccs liu sitlru'ics antl u'lrgrrs
(ìush ¡rairl Io vendors ancì sLrpltliels I'or- nl¡rtct'ials antl sct viccs

Nl.'r ..,', l. ",.'.1 i,.,..-.',.,.¡1,... ,'.,':.,;,; .,l¡llrll.:: (l{ tl\ ltrr \

Cush l'lou,s lìonr non-cirpital f inlncirrg lctiviLics:
Prollrìrty Iax rcvcnuc
lìcntal lcvenue
O.----,.--,, 

^-.,,,-¡,. 
\l¡...-,-. 

^ 
--.,.-.-., -..--.,.--- ---¡

')(rll\,lll.¡ \ \,(llltJ YY (ltUl /1ËçllL)' alSlççlllçiit

Plincipul lcccivccl on notcs lcccivablc
l)r'incr¡ul issuccl on nolcs l cccivublc:

Othcrl non-opcl rìtirut l cvcnucs, ncl

Nct cush pr.ovidcd(Lrscd) by non-ca¡titul l'inancing irctivitics

C¿rsh 1'lou,s lìom capital and t-elatcrl f inuncing iìctivilics:
Acc¡uisition anci corrslluction o1' capital lsscts
l)r'occcrls liom ca¡ritnl conlr'ibutions tnrl conncclion fìrcs

l)r'occcrìs 1ìlrlr f he issulncc: o1'tlcbt

l'r'inci¡rll ¡rlìd on long-tcrrn dcbt

lntcrcst ¡ririd on loug-tclm dcbt

Plocct:cls 1ìlnr thc salt ol cn¡rillrl asst'ts

Nct citsh usccl in cupittrl ancl rclatcd !inrrncing iìctivitics

Crsh l'lorvs lìorn investing uctivitics:
l)t'rlcuetls lìrllll sltlt' tll' iltvesllllr'llls
Pulchascs of invoslnicnts
I lrVcstnlcltt ca|nings

Nct clsh ¡rloviclcti by investing lìctivitics

Nct increase(dccrcasc) in cash and cash ct¡uivalcnls

Cash ancl cash ec¡uivrtlcnts, beginning ol'ycar

Cash rrrd cash cr¡uÌr,rtlcnts, cncl ol yclr'

lìcconciliation o1'cash and cash et¡uìr,alcnts to stiìtcntcnt ol linlncill position

Cash ancl crtsh cquivitlcnts
Iìcstri(ìtc(l ¿ìsscls - clsh lnd clsh cc¡Lrivalenl s

Total cush ¿ìnd câsh ccluivaJcnts

Conf inLled on ncxl lllìg,c

Scc rcconr¡ranying notes to lhc bltsic lìnullt:ill stalonlotìts

$ r2,l¡J7,399
(4.262,1e0\
(9. I 42,59ó)

I t.560,230
r4 {l7l 1R()ì

(9.t I | .227)

( I .217.987) ( I ,1,24,286)

103,630

52.06 t

( I t (r./+oi

t78,36()
(3 r7,5rì5)

63.142

I i().129
40 ?lî

(ìi4,íriì2)
2rì5,30rì

(296.151)

37.2.s5

(30,63rJ) 7{).4}ì(ì

14,t)9tì,434)
2,090,46(r

t,423,.s31

(197.122)
(503,227 )

(7,1ìrì4,45rì)

6,812."/l()
721,e68

(402,009)
(5s7,9r.t3)

t7.443

(2,1r34.786) ( l,2tl6.2t¡0)

? 0ìtì 5)?

499,942

7.364444
(3.14'1,020)

ó9ti.094

2.5 38.46.5 4,9 t5,5 rrÌ

2.075.45t1

4,281 ,303

(tii94,946)

ó.356,7(r I

$ 5,46I ,ll rs (r,3.5(r,7(r l

$ 3.0t7.521
2.444.288

5,293 , il .5

l,(Xr3,(r4(r

$ 5,461 ,8l.s 6,35(r,7(r I
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North N{arin Water District
Statements of Caslr Flows, continued

Iror the Year Bnded.Iune 30.2009 and 2008

2009 200{ì

lìeconciliat.ion of'opelating incor.ne to net cash used itt opclntittg activitics:
Opelating loss

Adjustmcnts tt'r lcconcile opelating Ioss 1o nel cash uscd in opelating acl"ivities

Dc¡rlecation
C-'hanges il'r ¿ìsscts and liabilities:

(lnclcasc)Dcclease in assets :

Accounts l-eccivable - water' ¿rrd scwct sales ancl set viccs

Acoounts leccivablc - govelnrncrÌt.al agencics

Accounts lcceivablc - other'

Mal.eli als and sr-rppli es i nventoly
Plepaid expeuses and other cleposits

Inclcasc(l)eclcase) in liabilities:
Accounts payatrle ancl accrucd exllcuscs

Accrued wages irnd lelated payables

Accnred clai ms payairle

Customcl aclvances and cleposits

Conlpeusated absenccs

Post cmploynicnt lctilerncnt bcnel'its

Total adjustnrenls

Nct cash uscd in opelating activities

Non-c¿rsh investing, capital and 1ìnancing tlansaclions
Change in lÌrir-malkct valuc of invcstl¡ents
Contributed capital

See accorrpanying notcs {o the basic linancial statculents

$ (r0,82r,970) (2,s2I,s09)

(129,428)

(307,378 )

97 .9) t

45,8',76

r,930

(50;77 4)

20,736
t5,54tì

10,091,139

43,370
63.759

(10,r.57)
(429.069)

44,82e

1.761.673

(168,rs3)

9l 201

,(l t5?

13,781

(87,4031
(ó50,530)

(77,t02ìt

90, r 88

9,ñ3,983 89',7,223

$ ( l ,2t1 ,987) (t ,624.286)

$ til.2tì9
936

r7.383
4,681,260
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North Madn Water Ðistrict
Notes to the IJasic Financial Statements

For thc Years Ended.f une 30,2009 and 2008

(1) Ile¡rorting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Organization ancl Operations of the Re¡rorting llntity
The North Matin Water District (District) is iur independent special clistrict lbrmed in A¡rlil 1948, which
operates under the authority of Division l2 of thc California Watel Code. The District's service area
int'lutles the Cilv of Novirltr. irdi¿ri.r'nt irlc¿ts- trlLls ¿rnnex_ed ale-;rs ilr Wcst Murin Counlr,. l-he l)istr-iet is' 'J ' t'_ '-""- .,' r .,*.,.J

governed by a live-membel Boald o1'Directors who serve overlapping four-yeal lelnrs.

The critcria used in determirting the scope o1'the l'inanclal reporting elrtity is lrased on the provisions ol'
Govertl.nerrtal Accountirtg Staternents No. 14,'l'he It'/nunt'iul Re¡torÍittg Entitl,, and No. 39, Deterntining
Whelher (lerluiu Orgunizulions Are Crsmpotrenl Uttiîs (an ¿urerrclment of No. 14). The Disfrict rs the
primary govenllrental unit based on the lbundatiou <r1'a separately elected governin-{ board that is elected
by the citizens in a getteral ¡ro¡rular election. Component nnits al'e legally separate organizations lbr whlch
the elected offtcials of the primary governrrent are l'in¿urcially accoun(able. The District is financially
,.^,,^..,,r,.L1.. il :i ..-.-.,:.,i., .. .,^¡1.^^ .,-.,:-,..:r., ,.1'¿l- ^..--..-l-..¡l^ ---.-:.^- l^^l-. ..-^1. I \ r. : l^tdLLUtlrtt(tt,lL tr tt dl,lrUllltr rl \Ul.lll!, llldlUlltJ t,l tllç Ul¡{dlll¿dtlU¡l 5 ¿l(rV(jllllllg U(}Uy ¿lllU. l, lt lS itt)¡U t()

impose its will on that clrganizalion, ol' 2) 'l'here is a ¡rotential lbr the organization to ¡rrovicle specific
financi¿tl lrenefits to, or im¡rose specil'ic l'inancial burdc:ns on, the primary governnlerìt.

The Distnct's o¡let'ations Ale accounted fbr by the lbllowrng service are¿ìs, sotre of which wele originally
e statrlished as hrprove r.ncnt Districts. Although thc Ir.r-r¡rlovcr.ncnt Districts are iegally scparatc
organizations, they are relrorled herein as il' they wele pÍìl't of the ¡l'imary governlÌent because the

¡:rimary govet'ntrent controls the Irrprovement Districts ancl the Boald of Directors serve as tlreir
otlvctllillft holrrrl Tlr,'ltol lrlwino çrYvir'r'iil'(lir\:il'o r','rrlll.l¡'rl:rc hlelrd¡'rl¡.ñnlrì^nênf ilrìil\c' _"""c ' '"'Õ

^I^-.-¿^ 
lll-¿^-- (1--.-¿^-^, Tl^ - Àl-.-... \l/ ,.--- c-. ----- : -l-- - -1 ,- : l' 't\uvutu YVutct ,.tysu:ilt * | ilc l\()!¿il() vv¿rrcr J)ystuilt ls Utc l)t illtiUy s('tvtcc (|tvt\t()il ()t lnL- t-,lSU'tct liltu

rclplesents the lraslc ¡l'inary colxpot]enÍ of the Distl'ict.

Wesf Marin Watcr System lbr"mally Pr¡int Reye,s Sen,ice Arau. - This service area begau in 1970 ¿rs a

sepal'¿rte voter-a¡r¡r'oved lr.nlrrove t.nenl District. Point Reyes wÍìs collsolidatecl with the Olelna
Itnprovetlellt Distlict in 1996 and the Paradise Ranch Estate ìrn¡troverlent District itr 2002, follt-lilta Ihc:

West Marin Water Systerr.

Oceana Marin Sewer Servi.ce - Iìy agreerrent with a ¡rrivate devc¡loper, this service are¿ì was lbrmed to
provide sewcl selvice to area l'esidents colllnetrcilrg in June 1973.

Novuto lìecycled Watcr System - This is a enterprise lind whrch was lblrnec'l by the Distlict in 2007
which accounts lbr the opet'aticln o1'the Distlicl's recycled water tleatlìrent planl in a separate lìnd.

B. Ilasis of Accounting and Measul'enrent [ìocus

The I)istrict repolts its activities as an erìtel'prise fund, which rs used to account fbr o¡rerations that are
f inallced and operatecl in a manner sirnilal to a ¡rrivate business enterplise, where the intent of thc District
is that the cost ol'providtng water ol waslewater disposal lo ils scrvice íìl'cit cur a colttinning Llasis be
fillanced or l'ecovered ¡rlimarily through user charges (water sales and sewel selvice charges), capital
gl'altts and sitnilal finding. Iìevenues and expensL-s are rL'cognizc'd on the 1ì¡ll accrual basis clf accountitrg.
Iìevenues at'e recognized in the acconnting peliod in which they are earned and ex¡rcnses are recognized
in the peliod inculred, r'egaldless o1'when the related cash flows take place.

Operatrng revenues and expenses, such as water sales and sewer service charges along with watel
¡rurchases and wastewater disposal, result 1ì'olr exchange tt'ansactiolls associated with the ¡rrincipal
activlty of' the Distlici. Irxchitnge transaciiol¡s are those in which each party receives and gives n1t

essentially equal values. Mattagelrent, administration and deplcciatiorr e'x¡tc.rrses ul'e also cotrsidered
opetating exllenses. Other levenues and crxpenses not included in tlie ¿rbove categories are re¡tortecl as

ttott-o¡relating revenues and ex¡rettses. Nort-operating revenues arrd expeuses, such as grant finding,
itrr¡e'stlnent itrcorrrc- arrcl interest cxpense, r'esult lì'onr non".excharrgc lrurrr:ucl ions, ilr lvhich, the District
gives (receives) value without directly receiving (giving) value in exchange.

11



North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded.fune 30.2009 and 2008

(1) Reporting Bntity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

C. Ii'inancial Reporting

The District's basic l'inancial statelrents are ¡rresented in confbnnance with the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.34, "Ba,çit: Financial SÍatentents -
un.rl Manugenten.t's Dist:ttssion ancl Anulysi,s -.fttr Stute an.tl Lc¡r:al Goventruen.ts" (GASB No. 34). This
statement established l'evised fìnancial repofting requirements for state and local govemments throughout
the United States for the purpose ol'enhancing the understandability and usefulness of financial reports.

GASB No. 34 and its related GASB pronouncements ¡rrovide 1'ol a revised view of financial infonnation
and restructure the lbrntat of financlal inforrnation provided prior to its adoption. A staternent of net

assets replaces the balance sheet and repolts assets, liabilities, and the diff'erence between them ¿rs net

assets, not equity. A statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets replaces both the income
staten-ìent and the statement of changes in retained earnings and contributed capital. GASB No. 34 also

requiles that the statement of cash flows be prepared using the direct rrethod. Under the direct lnethod,
cash l'lows from o¡rerating activities ûre presented by major categories.

Undel GASB No. 34, enter¡rrise funds, such as the District, have the o¡rtion of consistently following or
not followillg prolrourlcerîents issued by the Financial Accounting Standalds Board (FASB) subsequetrt

to November 30, 1989. The District has elected not to follow FASB standards issued after that date,

urrless such standards ale s¡recifically adopted by GASB.

D. Assets, Liabilitics and Net Assets

1. Use of Bstimates

The pl'eparation of' the basic financi¿rl stateÍnents in conformity with generally accepted accounting
plinciples requires managerììent to make estimates and assumptions that aff-ect the reported alnoullts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statelnents and the reported changes in net assets during the reporting period.

2. Cash and Cash Bquivalents

Substantially all of the District's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly Irquid investlnerlts with a nratnrity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

3. Investlnents and Investment Policy

The Distlict has adopted an irrvestment policy directing the District's Auditor-Controller to deposrt

funds in financial institutions.

Changes ill market v¿rlue that occur dudng a fiscal yeal' are recognized as investment incorne l'epofted
for that fiscal year'. lnvestnrent incorne includes interest ealnings, changes in market value, and any

gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of iltvestments.

4. Accounts Receivable

The District extends credit to customet"s in the normal coul'se of operations. Management deelns all
accounts receivable as collectible at year-end. Accordingly, an allowance for doubtful accoulrts has

not t'leen recorded.

5. Property f'axes

The County of Marin Assessor's Ofl'ice assesses all real and personal ploperty within the County eaclr

year'. The County of Marin Tax Collector's Offices bills and collects the District's share of property
taxes and assesslïents. The County of Marin Treasurer's Office rernits culrent and delinquent
pl'o¡rerty tax collections to the District throughout the year. Property tax in California is levied in
accordance with Article I3A of the State Constitution at one perceÍìt (lo/o) of countywide assessed

v¿rluations.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to tlrc lìasic lrinancial Statements

For the Years Bnded June 30" 2009 and 2008

(1) Re¡rorting Entity and Summary of SignifTcant Accounting Policies, continued

Ð. Asset.s, tr,iabilities and l\et Assefs, continued

6. Restricted Assets

Restlicted assets are financial resources generated for a specrfic ¡rur'¡rose such as capital ¡rlojects or'

clebt selvice.'l'hesc assets are lbr the benefit ol'a specifiecl pur¡rose and, as such, are legally or
corttractually lestricted Lly an extelual third-palty ¿rgl'eenlertt.

7. Prepaid Expenses

Cet't¿tin llâynlellls to vendors rel'lects costs clr deposits applicable to liture accounting ¡reliods and arc.

recolded as prepaid items in the basic l'inancial stíìtelrents.

8. Ca¡rital Assets

\dlrrt(lr q¡\'rlt¡\ ul!l(rlrlu (¡¡lu/vl LUll¡tlt¡!tLU 4ll l.tPltd¡¡l.LU ut lll¡tullL(tl L\rll. vl¡tltLt lrUltLy ll(ll )Lt tllL

capitalization tlueshold fol ca¡ritalizing equipment purchases at f;.5,000. Donated assets are recorded
at estinr¿rted cost Íìt the date of donation. U¡ron retirer.ncìlìt ol' othel disposition ol' capital assets, the
cost and related accurlulated dcpreciation ¿u-e rcrlove<J fì'onr the respccfive balances and auy gains or
losscs are lecognized. De¡rrecialion is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimalecl useful lives
of the assets as l'ollows:

e Darr - 100 years
. Tlansmission and clistlibution systen'ts - -50 y,s¡1'"

e Tl'e¿rtmeÍìt platìt - 20 to 50 years
e Sewel rurins ¿rnd puullls - l0 to 40 years
e lluilcJings and stolage facilitres * 3-5 years
r Hqurpnrent and vehicles -- 5 to l0 yeals

9, Clompensated Absenccs

The District's enrployees have a vestecl interest in accrued vac¿ìtiou fime. All vacatioll houl's will
eventually be elthel used ol'paicl-ol'f try the District. Ernployee-s ealn vacation tinrc oll a semi-l.lionthly
llasrs. E,rl¡rloyees nonrally ealn and usc thcil'currcnt vacation tinlc with a small ¡rortion being unused
each year. As this occrurs, the District irtcurs a future obligation to pay lor these urrused hours and
accmed a liatrility fol'such acculnulated and unpaid vacation tille.

Full-tirre Distnct em¡rloyees ealn sick leavc at a rate of'one clay per rnonth. District crrployees rnay
elect to be ¡:aicl fol accl¡mulated and unused sich leave irr excess of 90 clays, at a rafe of' one-hall'o1'
the value ol'such ¿rccur.nulated Íìn-ìour.ìt. Ther l)istl'ict has accrued a liability lbr such excess ¿ìu'ìoLìt.tts.

10. Water and Sewer Sales

Water sales at'e billecl on a bi-rronthly cyclrcal basis. Estrnlatecl Llnbilled water and sewel sales ancl

scrvice charges thlough.lune 30'l'have lreell accruecl as ol'ycal encl.

I l. Capital Contributions

Capital contributions leplesent cash and capital asset additions contri[-ruted to the District by pl'o¡rerty
owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that rec¡nire capital ex¡tenditures
ol cirpircity cortunilrlcnt.

12. Capital and C)perating Griuts

When a grant agreernent is iqrploved and eligible ex¡renditures are incurred, tlre arlonnt is lecorcied as

a lèderal capital ol o¡rcrutirtg grant leceivatrle on the st¿rternent ol' nef assets and as ca¡rital grarrt
contt"ibLliiorl ot'ri¡rcr.uiing gr.¿lnI re\,cnuu, as apl)ro¡rliatc, on thc staLcnrcilt ol-rcvcnlrcs, cx¡tcrrscs arrci

changes in net assets.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded.Iune 30. 2009 and 2008

(l) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets, continued

13. Budgetary Policies

The Distl'ict adopts an annual non-appropl'iated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes.

Budgetary corìtroì and evaluation are affected by cornparison of actual revenue and expense with
planned l'evenue and expense for the perrod. Encumbrance accountirrg is nol used to account for
cornmitments related to unperfolrned contracts for construction and services.

14. Net Assets

The financial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net assets are categorized as follorvs:

o Net Investment in Capital Assets - This colxponent of net assets cousists of capital assets,

net of accunrulated depreciation and leduced by any outstanding debt against the acquisition,
construction ol improvement of those assets.

o Restricted Net Assets - This colnlroueut of net assets collsists of constraints placed on net

assets use through external constraints imposed by creditors, glantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations ol' other govenlr'r-ìents ol' coustraints imposed by law through constitutional
provi sions or enabling legislation.

. Unrestricted Net Assets - This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not
meet the definition of restri.cterl or n,et i.nvesÍntent in ca¡tital assets.

(2) Prior Period Adjustment

2008 - Non-Capitalized Security Upgrades ønd Non-Expensed Engineering Project Costs

ln 2008, the District continued to incur costs related to seculity upgrades for its infiastructure capital
assets; however, in2007, the District decided to expense its security upgrades accumulated costs to date.

In 2008, it becanre apparent that the total o1'those prior and current costs was significant enough to add

tangible value to the STP project, and therefbre, the District decided to letroactively capitalize the

fì 133,682 expensed security upgrades to its constluction-in-process account in the current year'.

In 2008, the District recognized an advance fol'construction of $15,446 as a capital contlibution fi'om a

developer lbr a ploject in its Oceana Marin Sewer service area. However, the District should have offset
that advance against the accumulated engineering costs in CIP of $15,446 for the plo.ject. The $15,446 is

imln¿rterial to the overall presentation of the l)istrict's basic financial statements, trut it could be

considercd to be a material adjustrnent to the Oceana Marin Sewel' segment ol'the l)istrict and is therefbre
tleated as a ¡rrior ¡reriod adjustment. Had these changes been applied to the year ended June 30, 2007, the

effect on the change in net assets would have been an inclease of fì118,236 ($133,682-$15,446).

2008

Net asscts, beginning ol'year

Change in nct asscts

Ad.justrnent lill non-capitalizccl sccurity upglades

Adj u strnen t lìrr non-cx¡ren sccl en gi nccli ng plo j cct

Nel asscts, end of'year'

15,463,961

4,73',7,51)3

133,682
(15,446)

$

20

$ 80,3 r9,790



North Nlarin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded .lune 30" 2009 and 2008

(3) Cash and Investments

flnsh and inves(mcnts ¿s o1'JL¡nc 30. ¿u'c: classif icrl in thc acconr¡ranying f inancial slalcrrenls as 1ìrllorvs:

2009 2001ì

Cash ancl cüsh cc¡uivalcnts

ììcstlictcd - c¿tsll ¿ulci cash cc¡Lrivalenfs

Inrie sI rle ltI s

Iìcstrictctl - inr¡cs(nlen[s

Cash on ìrancl

Dc¡rosi{s with financial inslitrrtirlns

l)cposits with C<iunty ol'Malin I'r'casuly
lnvcs( nrenl.s

'l'otal cash arìcl invcstnro¡lts

Authorized

Investment Tvpe

$

:b

3,0t1"527

:,4+4,:ò¿5

2,084,755

,5.293.1 l5
I ,r ,()-1,(l+(r

439,960

3,(rtì3,318

'l-olal c¡sh ¿mcl invcsl.urenls

Caslt irnd irlr¡cstnlonts as ol'Junc 30. c:onsist o1'thc Iìrllowino:

$ 7.-s46,-s70 r0.480.039

20082009

350

ó 16.064

24,614

6,905,4tì2

350

t52,656

27,62e

10,21)9,404

$, 7,.546,.570 10,4tì0,039

lnvestunenls ,Aull¡orirtd hy thc Califomia {.ìovcrnntutl Codc ufid lhc l)isÍricl's trttvtslntc¡tl l'olicy

The l:rhle helow idt'lllil'ir's lhc ilìv('slrìì('rìl ly¡rcs lhirl ir!'î irutlìolizcrl l-ry thc Distlict irr ¿recorel¿rncc witlr tllc
Californla Governurent Code (or the Distlict's investrrent policy, where r.r-lole restrictive). The tattle alscr

iclentifies certain provisions ol'the Calilbrnla Govel'llrrent Code (ol'the Distl'ict's investr-nent pohcy,
where urore restl'ictive) tliat addl'ess interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentrÍt(iou ol'credit rislt. This
table does Ilot adclress investnrents of detrt proceeds held by bond trustees that arc govel'ned by the
provisiotts o1'debt agreements ol'the District, rather than the general provisions ol'the Calil'onlia
Govelnurent Code or the District's investt.uetrt policy.

Maxilnum
Matruity

Maxinrum
Perrcentage

C)f Portfolio'i'

Maximu¡n
Ilrvestment

in One Issuel'

Stato ancl l-ircal Agency Borrcìs 5 yciu's l0l1' Nonc

U.S. Î'cusuly Obligatiuns 5 yclu'¡;'t"r' I5q, Nonc

U.S. Agcncy Scculitics 5 yc¿¡'¡;',",' 75(1, ñrnc
Ilmkcr''s Acce¡rlanccs I lJO days l0()(, 30,i/,,

Cìrmmclcial Pa¡rcr' 270 days l](il, l](i/,,

Non-ncgotiablc Collif tcrtr¡s ol'I)c¡msil I yctl l0(,1 Nonc

Ncgotiable Cìu'tif icalcs ol'Dcposit 5 ycals l0()(, ñtne
Mcdium-Ti:r:m Notcs 5 yciu's 30()L ñrnc
Iìqrulchasc íìgr'çcrnlcnts 30 days l0(1, Nonc

Moncy Markcl Mutual Funcls N/A 10"1, l0(/r'

Calilìr'nial-trcal Agcnr:y Invcslnlent lruncl (L,AIIr) N/A 15(i/t' ñlnc
C'alilìruria Asset Managenrcnl R ogranr (CAMP) N/A '75'/, None

';'Excluding anloul'rls ltclcl by boncl tl'uslcc that alc not subjoct to CalilìlrniaGor¡crnn.lcnl Ctxlc l'cstriclions.
'i'r'Exccjrt whon aulholized by Iho Distlict's lcgislativc body in accurtlancc with (iovolnmenl (lldc Scction -5360 I
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North Marin Watel District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded June 30,2009 and 2008

(3) Cash and Investments, continued

Investntents Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investrneut of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are govenred by provisions of the debt agreements,

rather than the genelal provisions of the California Governnrent Code or the District's ilrvestlnent policy.

Custodial Credif Risk

Custodial credit l'tsk fot' cle¡tosi,ts is the lisk that, in tlre event of the l'ailure of a depository financial
institution, a govenìment will not be able to recover its deposits ol will not l¡e able to l'ecovel'collateral
securities tlrat are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for in,vestme¡¿l,ç is the l'isk

that, in tlre event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a tl'ansaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of its investr-ìreut or collatelal seculities that ale in the possession of
another pal'ty. With respect to investrnents, custodial credit risk generally applies only to dtrect

investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local governtnetrt's indirect
investment in securities thlough the use of mutual funds or govel'nmellt investment ¡lools (such as LAIF).

The Califol'nia Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contaill legal ol policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investlrents, other than

the following provision for deposits: The California Governlnent Code requires that a fitrancial institution
secure deposits rnade by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the goventmental unit), and, the

Distl'ict's investment policy tliat requires uo rrìore than two-thirds of the District's deposits in a de¡rository

shall be collateralized by rnortgage-backed securities, with the remaindel to be secured try tton-tnortgage-

backed securities. The nrarket value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least

110a/o of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secul'e District deposits by pledging first trust deed rnortgage notes having a value of 150o/a

of the seculed public deposits. Of the District's bank balances, up to $2.50,000 is federally insured and

the remainitrg balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities

are not held in the District's nanìe.

Investnrcnt in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency lnvesttnent Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by

the California Governlnent Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. Tlie fair
value of the Distl'ict's investtnelrt in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at

anìounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fàir value provided by LAIF lbr the entire LAIF
portfblio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdlawal is based

on the accounting records lnaintained by LAIF, which are recorded on arl atÌ'ìortized cost basis.

Interest Rate Risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the lÌrir value of an

investment. Generally, the longer the rnaturity of an investmeut, the greatel' the sensitivity of its fair value

to changes in market illterest rates. One of the ways that the District nìanages its exposure to intet'est l'ate

risk is by purchasing a combination ol'sholter tenn and longer term investrnents and by tirning cash flows
fl'om lnaturities so that a portion of the portfolio rnatures or conles close to rnaturity evenly over time as

necessary to provide requirements lbr cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. Information about

the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctu¿ttions is

plovided by the following table th¿rt shows the distribution of the District's investrnents by maturity date:
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North Marin Watel Distlict
Notes to thc'Ilasic Financial Statenrents

For the Years Bnded .lune 30.2009 and 2008

(3) Cash and Investnrents, continued

Interesl Ralc ðIisk, cotúinued

Invcstnrcnts at June 30. 2(X)9. consistctl o1'thc 1ìrllowing: lìernani¡lg Matr¡ri t1'(in Months)

Arrrount

'12 monlhs
ol'less

73 t<t 24

¡nolrths

25-60
rnonlhs

M¡rre than
60 Inr¡nfhslltvestnrcnt 'l'ype

l-ocaI Agcrncy Invcslnrcnt lrulld

Cç,ncrlal Blcctlic Co. n()tc çi) 4.250','i

Wclls Irü¡go notc (j, 6.4507.
Olorria gcnclal obligalion lroncl

Totrl

Invest¡nent'l',t,lrt¡

l.,or:al Agcncy lnvcstlltcltt Iìund
tJ.S. lìc¡rsuly notcs

Gcnclal lllcctlic Co. notc kt.' 4.250ttí

Coldnran Siìchs lìotc Gr (r.87.5f,

Wclls Falgo notc @r (r.4.507.

Olcnta gcnclal obligltron buntl

'I'ollI

Invcst¡ncnt'l'ytrc

[,ocal Agency ìuvcstlncnl Iìund

L).S. Tlcasuly notcs

Gcnelal .lllcctr'ìc Co. notc @\ 4.250(i(,

Gold¡ran Sachs note (r) 6.1.i7.57,

Wclls Fargo notc @r (r.4507,

Olcnra gcnclal obìigalion boncl

l'(nal

,!

:;

.b

4.82(\,72',7

t,0 t6,930
I.045,.5ó0

22,265

4,820.171
| .0 t6,930
1,045,5ó0

t ) )/-<

.$ 6,905.4u2 4,820,121 22.265

Invost¡rcnts at June 30, 2(X)8. i:onsistcd o1'llrc 1ìrllorving: lìcm¿¡ni¡ru l\4¿tu¡'i tv (in Monfhs)

Arnounf
l2 monlhs

¡lr less

13 ta 24

rnonths

2s^60

rnonfhs
l\{orc than
60 nronths

25,7 llJ

25.7 I 8

6, t 76,1 2ó

l.(x)6.020
I,00ti,46()
1,03IJ,0!.x)

1,04:1,990

2.s,718

6,1 76,1 26

I,00(r.020

l,(x)¡ì,460
t,03tì.090
t.044.990

ri t0,299.404 1,t82.146

ì\,lininrunr
l,egal
llating

3.091 .540

CrediÍ íLisl<

Genelally, credit risl( is the risk that an issuer of an investnlent will not fulfill its olrligation to the holder
ol the itrvestl'nent. Tliis is llreasured by the assignrllenl of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
ratiÍìg org¿ìnization. Presented lrelow is the nrininlurx Íating lequired by (where applicable) the California
Govcrnlrent Codc, the Distnct's investulent policy, ol debt agreenlents, and the ¿ìctual rating as of year
end for eilch investlnent type.

(ìr'cdrt |atings ¿t JUnc :10. 2(X)!), crusistccl o1'thc 1ìrllowing Iìxcm¡rt
I,'rotn

l)isckrsuro
Ilatings

ÂAÄ AA+ to AA-luvestlrrent'tr'yDo

l-ocll Agcncy Invcstmcnt lìLrncl

Gcneral lllcct[ic Co, notc @j 4..25Ui
Wells Fulgir note @l 6.4507.
Olcnra gcnclal oblìgation hond

"r'orar $ ___!!l]¡1q?_
C'r-cclit latings al Jr¡nc 30, 2(X)lJ. consistecl o1'thc Iìrlkrwing:

¡\mount

5 4,820,12'l
| ,0I 6,93()

1,045,560

22,265

Arlror¡nt

N/A
A-
A-

N/A

Minilnunr
l,egal
llating

4.820.121

22.265

___!_w_222_
trlxenrpt
Ilroln

l)isclosurc

I,r) t6.9.10

1.04,5.-s60

2,0ó2.490

--!!4llg'AAA ÀA+lrlAË
6,t76,t26
Ì,(XX),020

l.(x)¡ì.460
1,03r.j,090

1.044.!.)90

2.5.7 lti

N/A
AAA

A-
A-

N/A

ó,1 7ó, t 26

l,(XXr,020

l,(X)13,4(r0

1,038.090

1.044.990

25.7 tu

6.20 r,844 2.0 I 4,4t30 2,083.080.! I0,299.404

Concentration o.f Credit Risk

The investnrent pollcy 01'the District contains no lirritations on tlle ¿lnlour.rt that can be invested in any
olte issuel' beyond that stipulatLìd try the Calil'omia Govel'nment Code. Thc following is a list that
represents 5(k ot lrìore of total I)istrict inveslltreltts investecl in one issUer.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008

(3) Cash and Investments, continued

Concentration of Credit Risk, continued

Issuer
Reported Anrount

Investnrent type>5% 2009 200{t

lJ.S. Tleasury notes

Genelal Electlic Co. notc @ 4.25014,

Goldrnan Sachs notc @ 6.815/o

Wells Falgo notc G) 6.45U/r'

(4) Internal Balances

Due To/From Other Funds

Fec'leral âgency soculities

Mediu rn-tclm corpor¿ìte not.c

Mcdium-teIm cor'por¿ìte note

Mecliurn-tclnr cor'l)orate note

1,016,930

I,045,5d)

Intel'ual balanccs consist o1'the lollowing as o1'June 30,2009 as lbllows

Purposc
Payable

Fund

Wcst Marin $

Novalo Recycled

'Iotal $

17ti,.560

2,896,0-52

$ 1,006,020

r,008,4m
I,038,090

I,044,990

Rcceivablc
Fund Anrount

Advancc

Advancc

Novato Water

Novato Water'

458,822

230,623

689,445

ìntelrr¿rl balanccrs consist ol'the lbllowing as ol'June 30, 2008 as lìrllows:

Receivable Payable
Purpose Fund l¡und Amount

Advance Novato Water 'Wcst Malin fì 591,506

The Novato Water segrrent continues to advance the West Marin and Novato Recycled seglxents funds
fbr opelations. Repayr-nent terms continue to be worked out with repayment of the plincipal balance

advanced. Interest accrues on the balance at the rnonthly retuln rate of the District's investment portfolio
plus $50 pel month.

(5) Note Receivable - Black Point Golf Links

This Distl'ict has enlered rnto a contractual agreement with the Black Point Golf Links wheleby the golf
coulse agreed to reimburse the District for construction cost incurred for a uew recycled water treatment
pìant, in-lieu of corrnection fees. The reimbursernent is collected in bi-monthly instalhrents through
Febluary 2O24, includrng interest at a rate of 2.400Va, As of June 30'r', the alnount receivatrle under the

contract is as follows:

'l'he b¿rlance al .luno 30, consists ol'the lbllowing:

Notc leceivable - lllacli Point Coll'Links - currer'ìt pot'tion

Note reccivablc - Black Point Goll'Links

Notc lcccivablc - Black Poin( Goll'Links

2009 2008

ï' 3,014,6t2

(6) Notes Receivable - Employee Computer Loans

The Distt'ict allows em¡rloyees to purchase personal cornprìters and to secul'e a loan from the District to
pay fbr the purchase of tlre cornputer up to fì3,500 per person. Tliese ernployee computer loaus are repaid
to tlie Distlict ovel a period of up to 36 months though payroll deduction with intelest rates applied that
are based on the Distlict's investment portfolio l'etul'n rate at the ongination of the loan plus one percent.

As of June 30, 2009 and 2008 the Drstrict had various outstanding lo¿rns totaling $4,136 and $8,164,
respectively.

1ì t]4,332
3,014.612

3,248,944
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Iror the Years Bnded .lune 30.2009 and 2008

(7) Notes Receivable - Ilmployee l{ousing Assistance f,oans

The District's Ernployel Assistccl Housing Progratr (Ploglanr) allows up lo $300,000 to be loanecJ to an

enployeel'orapelrocl of u¡lto l5yealslbrthepurchaseof allornewithrntheDistrict'sselvicearea.This
wlll allow (lre employee to lespond rapiclly to cnstomer calls or enrergencic's allecting the o¡ret'ation o1'the
District. Repayment is clue u¡.ron sale ol'the errployee's residence, fermination of ernploynrent, or other
evenls as clescritred in the Plogranr doculnents. Interest earned on the lo¿ur is contingent u¡ron and directly
plo¡rorl.iortal to the a¡rpreciaiion in value occun'ing on the purchersed propertv. The 1'ollowrng is a listing of'
errployee housing ¿rssistance Ioans and their c<l'respondiug origination dates as lÌlllows:

'Ì'h,. h4l,'n,.,' ,¡r l'¡'r,. ?lì ,.'.'."ict" ¡r{'11.,' f¡rll¡..',i^.-.

Or'igination 2009 2008

ALrgirs( 2(X)4 $

Scpt. 2(X)4

Ociol¡er' 2(X)í'r

Sept,2007
Nov.2(X)7
.luly, 200t3

Oct. 2(X)tì

250.(X)0

39.200

3(X),000

140.(XX)

1.50.(xx)

I25,(Xn)

I92,-5U5

250,(X)0

39,2(X)

.1t,t ,,( l,t ,

140.(x)0

t-50.(x)0

'l'otal :i' t,196,785 879.200

(8) Capita! .AsseÉs

Co n stru d i on -l n- F rou rus s--_ - _-'ò

The I)tstrict has lreen involvecl in v¿u'iot-ls constluction ¡r'o.jects throughout the year. Thc balances o1'Lhc
val'ious constl'uctiou pro.jects thal comprise the constl'nction-in-plogress balances at June 30 are as

l'ollows:

21101 2008 2009

l'hc balancc âl JLÌnc 30, c<lnsis{s ol'tht: Iìrllowiug prrrjr.cls:

I)cvclollcl constmction -' Novat<l Walc:r'

l)cvcloPc..r' con sl r'u ct i on - N ovato lìccyc led

Dcvclo¡rcr constnrction - Wcst Malin Watcl'
Dcvclopcl constnrction - Or:cana Marin Scwcr'
(i:ntcr lÙlarl lank
Palniel'Dlive lank
Recyclctl wutcl lìrcility ctrrslnrclirrn
Rccyclcd walcl lirci lity cxJransion

Outlct towcl slr-rcc galo

Sc:culi{y r-rpglaclcs

Accottttti tt¡ sol'lwlu'c c(rrì\ ('rsi()n

2nrl Fcotl 1o Arnaroli tank

Valior-rs othcl ninor' ¡l'ojccls <fi l(X),(XX)

'lirlitI coltsll'Lrctirlll-ilr-lllrrccss l)('t yr,iìr

?(ì5 5?.)

$ 10,804,452 1,140,341 I,101,450

$ 2,948,092
49t,130
l.5tì,494

28,323
2, t4-s,tr I 0

.)5() )?5

3,316,341

131,551

331,604
t33,682
103,674

I.541,m4

3,829

| 8.60 r

2.240,154
I,0rÌ3,63 r

9-51,tì26

528,204

428,t)04

131.456

1,045,246

x l7l

4t1 ,29.\
236,634143.914

25
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For thc Years Ended.lune 30.2009 and 2008

(8) Capital Assets, continued

Changes in capital assets 1ìlr'the ycal wcl'e as lìrllows:
llalance

2008
Additions/
Transf'ers

Deleúions/
Transf'crs

lìalance
2009

Non-cleqrr eciable assets:

Land and lancl rights
Cbnslr'u cti ou-in-ploccss

Total non-cle¡rreciabl c asscts

Depreciable assels:

Distribution systeul

Treatnrcnt ¡rlant
Stolagc 1'acilities

Tl'ansmission syslcul
Sor.rlcc lhcilitics
Sewer làcilitics
Sl lncl.ules ancl i rrrplovelnctrts

Othel plant and ec¡Lriprnent

Total clepleciable assets

AccumLrlated clcplcciation :

Distlibulion systern

Treatnrcnt ¡rlant
Storagc 1'acilitics

TlansrlissiOn systgÍr.ì

Soulcc lìcilities
Scwer lacilitics
Stluctules ancl i rrrplovetncnts

Othcr ¡:lant ancl equiprnent

Total accumu latecl cle¡l'eci ation

Total depl'cciable assets, net

T'otal capital assets, ncl

,$ |,413,091
1,140,341 3,348

1,473,091

1,101 ,4s0"719 (8,78 r,6 r0)

8,613,432 3,348,119 (u,781 ,610) 3, 1 80,.54 1

50,813,593

21,518,174

1 1 ,105 ,9 43

s,4rì9,830

3,-508,1ìí)

692,451

r,778,3tÌrì
2,966,633

4, r ó3,8s3

583,228

.5.339,761

1,518,222

t6t,232

350,965 (194,133)

54,911,446

22,162,002
17,045,104

5,489,830

5,021,082
rì53,6tÌ3

t,778,388
3,122,865

98,534,472 12,11,261 (t94,133) il0,457,000

(ll,l4l,r90)
(2,067,662)
(2,824;7sl)
(r,830,61 r)

(911,s32)
(204,439\
(733,855)

(2,0t4,313)

(6,528,944)
(830,98s)
(725,912)

( 1,036,33.s)

(365,620)
(134,032)
(226,189)
(243,122) t94,133

(17,610,134)
(2,89rì,647)

(3,550,663)

(2,866,94(¡)

(1,283,152)
(338,4'71')

(960,044)

(2,062,762)

(21;734,413) (ro,o9r,r39) 194,113 (3 1,630,tì l9)

76,800,059 2,026,122 7tJ,tJ2ó, r 8 r

$ rÌ.s,41 3,491 5,314,841 (8,78r,610) 82,006,722
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For the Years lìncled June 30,2009 and 2008

(8) Capital Assets, continued

Chantcs in capital asscts lìll the ycar wcrLì ns lìtllorvs
Iìalancc

2007

Addifions/
Transl'ers

f)eletions/
'l'rausfþrs

llalance
200n

Ntln-dcprcciable asscts:

Land ancl lancl rights
(lonstnrct io n-in-¡.rroc:t-:s s

'ì-olal non-clcprcciablc asscts

Dcpl'eciabic lsscts:
Dislril.rul ion systcnr

Treatnrcnt plant

Slolagc l'acilitics
Tlallsnli ssion systùrìl

Soul'ce lircilitics
Scr¡,cr'f ircililics
S(r'r.rclulcs itrrtl irnpruvcntcrrts
( )tlìcl pliuìl irntl r't¡tri¡lrtt,'rtl

'l'otaI clcplcciablc asscls

Accuntula{ed dcltlcciation:
Dis{r'ibution systctn
'l'realrncnt 

l)lant
Stolagc. lìrcili{ics
'l'l'ansrni ssion syslenl

Soulcc lìrcilitics
Scwc'r'lìrcilitios
51r'uctules and i nr¡rrovcrrcnts
( )llrt'r' pllrrrl rrrtd t't¡rri¡lrrt'nl

'lÌrlal acculrrulatccl depl'cciation

'lÌrtal tle.¡rlt:ciublc asso(s, ltol

'lirtal capital asscls. nc(

$, I ,413,091
I r,39tt,034

12.811,125

2,9rì4,rì2tr (.7 ,?4?.519)
|.473,091
't ,t40141

8,613,4322,9u4,u26 ('7,242,519\

43.-560,tì(r7

11,557,'t94

I I,140.159
.5,489,830

3,50¡ì.rìlr)
6t36,18I

t.77tì,3tii8

2,u 18,6U6

7,2.53,9tì9

4,020,980

-565.7rì4

6,210

295,1 2u

( 1,263 )

(r47,rrJr)

50,¡ì I 3.-593

21,518.114

I 1,705,943

5,41Ì9,830

3.50t3,tÌ60

692,451

1.778,3rJ8

2,966,633

98,534,4128ó,540,7ó5 t2,t42,151 148,444

(1 r.141,190)
(2,(\(¡l,6621

\ j.òl{. /.ì I ,

{ 1.830,61 l)
(9r 7,s32)

12{)4,439)
(733,tì.55 )

62,I l0 (2,{)14,.173

( r0.532,464)
( I ,-506,1 tì9)
(2.630,070)

(l .1 51 .47 6\
(ut3 t,420)
( r tie,44l )

(69 1 .28-s )
( 1,846,5t)51

(60rJ.726)

(561,413)

\rv+,Irô1.,
(73. r 3.5 )

(36,1 l2)
( 14.99tì )

(42,510)
(229,978 )

(20,034,tì50) (1,76t,613) 62,1t0 (21,134,413)

(tì6,334) 76,u00,059

Ï, 79,371,040 l3 304 (7,328,8.53 ) U5,41 3,49 r

66,.50.5,91-5 10.3tì0,478
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic llinancial Statements

For the Years Bnded June 30,2009 and 2008

(9) Accrued Claims Payable

The District comlnenced self-insuling its workers' cornpensation obligation on Jnly l, 2004, and

established risk frnancing internal service funds whele assets are set aside fbl claim settlements associated
with the risk ol'loss up to certain limits fol workeLs' compensation claims. The Dlstrict has engaged an

outside claims administer for claims adjustrnents. The Dlstrict carried a wotkers' conrpertsatiorì excess

insurance ¡rolicy for claims that exceed $750,000.

In l'iscal year 2009, the District purchased insulance to covel its workers' compensation obligation and is
no longer self-insured for these clainrs. The remaining accrued claims payable balance will be adiusted as

prior year claims are resolved and closed.

Settled claims have uot exceeded any of the accrued coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal
years. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the ar-nount o1'the loss
can be reasonably estimated. The accrued claims payable balance includes an alrount for claims that have

been incurred bnt not lepolted (IBNR).

The balance al June 30, consists ol'the lbllowing

Accruecì clainrs payablc, heginning ol'ycar

Clainrs lccognizccl

Clainrs scttlcd
Cliams ad.justnrents

Accmecl clains payable, cr.rcl ol'year'

2009 2008

$ 24,557

il 0,1 57)

r 1 r,960

2;761
(142,103)

51 5 ì()

$ l4,4oo "r4 551

(10) Compensated Absences

Conrpensated absences comprise un¡laid vacation and sick leave which is accrued as earned.

Changcs [o conìl]ensated abscnces lbr 2009, wele as lìlllows:

llalancc llalance Current L<lng-ternr
2008 Earned Take¡r 2009 Portion Portion

ii, 362,2-51 806,505 (761,676) 407,080 lol,110 305,3 r0

Changes to compcrìsatcd abscnccs lirr 200U, wcre as fìrllows:

lìalancc
2ll(17 Iìarned Takcn

llalance
200fi

Current
Portion

Long-fernr
Porfiolr

$ 439,3s3 '75s,541 (832,643 ) 362,251 90,-563 27 t,688

(11) Post Employment Iìenefïts Payable

During the fiscal year ended .lune 30, 2009, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 45, which
changed the accouuting and financial repofiing r"rsed by local government employers for post employment
benefìts. Previously, the costs of such benefits were geuel'ally recognized as expettses of local govelnment
employers on a pay-as-you-go basis. The rrew le¡rorting requirernents for these benefit programs as they
pertain to the District are set fbrth below.

Plan l)escription - Eligi.bility

The Distl'ict pays a portion of the cost of health insurance for retirees undel any group plan offered by
CaIPERS, subject to certain restrictions as deternrined by tlie District.
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( I I ) Post Employnrent Ilenelits Payable, continued

Pktn Ðescriptiott * Eligibility, cottÍinued

N4cntbclshi¡r in thc OPIìB ¡rlan consistccl ol'thc lìrllou,iu-oi ntcnrbcls as o1'JLlllc.30

2009

Active plln mcrnbcrs
Rcl i r.ces ¡nti bcn c I'ic i ¡r^ics lccci vi n g hcnc lì t s

So¡raratetl ¡rliur rncrrhers clttillciì to but uot

yct rcccivirrg bcllcl its

Total plan nrcmbclshi¡r

'ì'hc balance at JLrnc 30. consists ol'thc 1ìrllorving:

Annuirl ()PE13 cxpcnse:

AnnuaI lcc¡r.rir-ctl colttt ibutiolt (ARC)

lntclcst on nct OPIìll obligatron
Ad.j u stm cn t { o aun ual t'cc¡r i lccl contl'i but i on

Toliìl iìnnual OPEB cx¡rcnse

Change in nct OPEB pnyablc obligation:
Agc ltl.iustcd con tli hu ti ons nriulc:

Total changc in nct OPIIB l)a)/ûhlc obligation

OPEB payablc - bcginning of'ycar'

OPIJB ¡raylltlc - cncl o1'ycar'

Nortlr Marin Water Ðistrict
Notes to the Iìasic llinancial Statements

I,'or the Ycars Bnded June 30,2009 and 2008

60
30

90

2Û09

2008 201',7

60

.t5

60
t2

95 92

Plan l)escri¡ttiott - Bene.fits

The Distlict ol'fers posl errl)ioynrerìl rì-ìcciic¿¡i 
-benefits to retired ernployees who satisl'y the eligibility

rules. Spoltses încì sut'vivittg sllouses are also eligible to leceive benc'.1'its, lìetirees rlay enloll in any plan
availalrle throLrgh the District's CalPEIìS rrediciì|. Thc contl'ibution tequil'erreuts ol'Plan utetrbers ¿rlcl

the L)istrict ale established and may be amendcd by the Boarciof I)ilectors.

Iiunding llol.icy

The District is requit'ed to contribute lhe Annuttl llet¡uiretl Contributit>n (AIIC) t1l'thc Employ¿¡, i111

amolntt actuarially deterrrined in accordance wiill the pi.rlarneters ol-CASII St¿rtclnent No. 4-5. The AlìC
l'ellresents a level of funding that, il'paid on an ougoing basis, is plo.jected to cover the nol'mal cost eaclr
year and allortizc arry uu{unded actu¿rlial liabilities (or luncùng excess) ovel ¿t ¡leriod uot to exceecl thirty
yeirs. Tlte cur'r'ent AIìC rate is 6.4% ol'the altrru¿rl coveled ¡rayloll.

The District will pay 100%; of the cost of'the post-enrployment benel'it plau. The Distl'lct íìnds the plan
on a pay-as-you-go basis itnd ln¿rintains rcst:rves (and records a liabiìity) lbr the diflèrence between pay-
¿ìs-you-go and the actLrarially determined AIìC cost.

Annuul Cost

F'or tlre yeitrs ended Junc 30,2009 and 2008, the District's AIìC cost is $213,421 and $ì272,191,
respectively. The Distnct's net OPBII payable obligation ¿u.nounted to $ltì1,389 and $90,lB8lbl the years
ended.lurte 30,2009 and 2008, r'espcctively. The District contributed $182,220 ¿rnrl $182.003 in age
adjusted confributions fìrr current retiree OPEII lrrelÌliulxs for the years ended JLrne 30,2009 and 2008,
respecti vely.

20ott 2007

$ 272.8(\6

(rl5

272,80ó

(615)

a1a Á a t

( I 82.220)

1?. t()l

( 182.003)

9 r,20 r

90, I uu

90.I tìlJ

90, t tiu
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North Marin Water District
Notcs to the llasic Financial State¡nents

For the Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008

(11) Post Employrnent BenefÏts Payable, continued

Tlie I)istt'ict's annnal OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the

net OPEB obligation fbr fiscaì year 2009 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Three-Year History oJ' N er OPIIll Ol¡li.gation

Fiscal

Year
Ended

Annual
oPtìtì
Cost

Age
Adjusted

Contlibution

Percentage
ol',Annual OPEIì
Cost Contributcd

Net OPEIì
Obligation

Payallle

2009
2(X)8

2U)l

$ 273.42t

212.t91
182,220

t82,003

66.64(;/t,

66.87 9t,

0.00(k'

9r .201

90,I 8rl

$

'i' The inlìlmation 1ìrl thìs ycal is unavailablc.

GASII No. 45 was estin.ratcd in liscal ymr 2ü)tÌ ancl in.r¡rlcn.renlecl in l'iscai ycru'2(X)9

Funded Status and Futtdítxg Progress of the Plan

Ilc(t u ired S u ppl e t n e nÍal I n lbr m s.Î.i o tt - Schedule ol' IÌ un¡linr! Itrouress

Actualial
Valuation

I)atc

Âctuarial
Valuc of

Plan Ässets
(a)

Acfuarial
Acclucd
Liability

(lr)

[.lnf'undcd
Acfuarial
Accrued

Liability (UAAL)
(b-a)

Irunded
Ilatio
(a/b)

Covered
l)ayroll

(c)

UÂAl, as a

Pcrcentagc
of Covered

Payroll
((b-a)/c)

1 lt t2006 $ 2,6.11 .514 2,63"1 ,5'14 0.00% .\ 4,262,190 61 .8'7%,

The most recent valu¿rtion (dated.luly 1,2006) includes an Actuarial Accrued Liability and Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Liability of 52,637,574. There ¿ìre no plarl assets because the District funds on a pay-

as-you-go basis and lnaintains net assets equal to the remaining net post-employment benefits payable

obligation. No trend inlbrmation is leported lrecause the year ended June 30, 2009, is the first year the

District implernented GASII 4-5. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the

¡rlan) for the year ended June 30, 2009 was fi4,262,'790. The ratio of tlìe unfunded actuarial accrued

liability to annual coveled payroll is 61.877a.

Actuarial Methods únd Asstulrptions

Actual'ial valuatiolls involve estirnates of the value ol' reported alÌrounts and assumptions about the

probability of events far into the futul'e. Actuarially detel'rnined alrìounts are sub.ject to continual revisioll
as actual results are compal'ed to past expectations and new estilnates are made about the futurc.
Calculations are b¿ìsed on the types of benefits provided under the ternrs of the subst¿urtive plan at the

time of each valuation and the ¡rattern o1'sharing of costs between the ernployer and plan membel's to that
point. Consistent with the long-terrn perspective of actual'ial calculations, actuarial methods ¿ìnd

assurnptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-tenn volatility in actuarial accrued

liabilities for benefits.

The lìfbwing is a surunaly ol'1hc actuarial âssunlptions and nlclhocls:

.luly l, 2(X)6

Iintly age nolmal cost rlcthocl

I-cvcl pcrccnt oi ¡rayloìl anulliz¡tion
20 Yeals as of the valualir¡l tlale

30 Ycal snxxrthcrl nralkct

6.007, - Plrþctccl at July 1,200(i

3.00t¿,

6 0(Y7,

l)istlict ¡nnual COLA

Vaìuation datc

Aclualial oost nretho(l

Anroll iz¡ I ion nlctlitxl
lìe nraining anrolt izatrlrt prirxl
Asset vah¡ation ¡ncthtxl

Aclualial assunlpti{xrs:

Invcstrììcnl liìlc of rùturn

Proþctetl salaly irrcr case

Inflation - (liscounl rale

Individual saìaty grorvth
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the llasic Financial Statcments

For the Years Bnded June 30, 2009 and 2008

(12) Long-temr Debt
Changos in lorg-ter Iìl (lel)l ¡nx)rìnls l'or thc ¡,s¿¡¡ nelc ¿s fìrllou,s:

Ilalancc
2008 ,A.dditions

l)r'inci¡ral
p¡1'¡rcnts

Ilalancc
2009

Crrllenl
l)o ltion

l.-ong-lelrrr dclrt;
lìonds plyablc:

l!)73 Cener'¿l obligation bollds - Plì-3 S

|!)75 Ccrnclal ohligatron bonrls --Ol.-2
l!)ll(l lleve nue bontls , Pl{li- I

198 I lìcvorlr¡c bonds - Pìì-(r

'Iol¡l ltontls pa)'¡blc

l-orrns ¡ra¡,:rblc:
1977 t.l.S. l.ll)A lo¡n -, Novato Wâlcr
1977 tl,S. El)A loan Wc:st lr4alin
2005 I)WR lo¿r'l- Novato Walct'
2005 l)WR loan -- Nor,¡to llccvcìerl

lìrltl ltr;urs pa),¡blc

'I'olal krng-lcrrrr rleht

l.,ong-lclrìì (lcl)t:

lìr--nds ¡-.uy:rhIc:

1973 Gcncr.¡l c'blig¿ì1ion bonils - ì)lì-3 $

I!)75 Gcncrll obligalion boncìs Ol,-2
I 980 Ilcvcnuc boncls - Plìli- |

1 98 I l{cvcnuc bonrls Plì-6

'ì-o1¿ìl l)(D(ls pay¿ìl)lc

l,oans ¡rayablc:
1977 U.S. lll)A lo¿rn - Novalo Wirtcr'

1977 t.l,S. lil)A lo¿n - Wcsl Mulin
2(X)3 lluuliltoll llountlrrr'), loal
2(X)5 l)Wlì lo¡Ul Noviìto Watcr
2005 l)WIl loln - Nova(o lìccyclcrl

TolaÌ loilrs plyablc

'l'ol al Ion g-tcilì) (lcl)l

ó4.0(x)

23,80 r

126.(XX)

t 22.000

( 12,{)(x))

( 2,92 1)

( 8,(nx))

t2.()(x)
3,06q
u.0(x)

7,000

52,m0
2 0, rì7 ti

I r tt,(r)0

122,{n0

335.80 r (22,t)2',.\) -1 li.ò/ö 30,0(r9

t 30,888

t 8.111

I 5,ó9(r, lfi5
4,t3 t,9'11

u.12.665

I30.lìtì8
t8.11',|

I ó.5 28, tt5 0

3.957,77u

II.rì80
1.164

324,7 ]l]
I7tì,38()(r74.l9e)

19.911 827 1132.(fr5

Atlditious

( I 74, 199) 20.636,293 -5 I 6,7'12

.\ 20,3 t3,ó2tì _____83?úÉ_ __!21t:¿ __:!!11"1!_ 54ó,rJ I I

(lurrcnl
Pol'tiou

C'hangcs in long-lcrrtt rlclrt auurunls fol thc ¡,rlx¡ q'clc ¡s fÌrllou's:
ll¿rla ncc

2007
Pl'int'i¡ial
Pâr'nrcn fs

Il¿t la ncc

2001ì

7.5.000
1rì 5i,1

I 33.(nX)

I 2!),()()0

( I 1,000)

(2.192\
(?,(xx))

(7.(n0)

ó4,(I)0
23.tì0 I

| 26,000

t22.(rx)

12.0(x)
)()tl
tÌ.(xx)

lt (r) ì3 63,59 3 (21,1921 33s.80 r

t'12,344

20.418
t9(\.111

I5.t05.3t9
.1,264,545

5 90, tìó(r

3lr,0l5

( I 1.4s6)

(t,70t)
( r 90,477)

( r 70,slJ3)

130,8t{13

18.171

I 5.696, 185

4,t 31.971 l'7 4,lr)9

I 9,723, l(r3 (r2u.lìu l (37 4,211) 19.917.821 114,199

5i 20.011(r.7.5(r ó2u.uu t (402,(n)9) 20,3 I 3,628 191,t22
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded.Iune 30,2009 and 2008

(12) Long-Term Debt, continued

Bonds Payable

1973 Generøl Obligation Bonds - Issue PR-3

On September.5, 1973, the District issued general obligation bonds totaling $250,000 to acquire iurd

improve the Inverness Park and Pornt Reyes Water Companies. The bond issuance was purchased in its
entirety by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, FaLrners Hol.ne Administration Rural Developnrent
Adn-rinistration on a 5Va, }-year payback basis.

The tronds are scheduled to mature in 2013. Principal and intel'est are payable annually on January I'r and

at a rate of 5.0007o. Future annual debt service requirements on the bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

201 0
2011

2012
2013

Total

Less cullenl. ¡-loltion

Total rìon-cnffelll

12,000

t3,000
13,000

r 4,000

2,í)0
2,000

r,350
700

14,600

1.5,000

14,350

14,100

$

52,000

(r2,(n0)

6,ô5() 58,6.50

$ 40,000

1975 General Obligatiort Bonds - Issue OL-2

ln 197-5, the District issued general obligation bonds totaling fì70,000 to acquile and improve the Olema

Water Company owned by 'W. Robert Phillips and others and to service that area. The bonds were
purchased by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), then upon demand of the USDA the bonds

were repurchased by the District's Novato W¿rter segment on June l,199l.The interest r¿ìte paid to the

Novato Water segment on the bonds was thereafter l'eset to the highel of the rate eal'lled by the District's
investments or the average rate of the Novato Water segment general obìigatron bond debt.

The bonds are sclrecluled to mature in 2015. Plincipal and intelest are payable annually on January I'r and

at a l'ate of 5.0007o. Future annual debt service requirements on the bonds are as follows:

I.iscal Ycar Principal lnterest 'Iotal

2010
2011

2012
2013
2014
201 5

Tolal

Less curenl poltion

lliltal non-curlenl

3,069
ì .)?ì

3,384
3,553

3,73 t

3,9r tì

1,044

890

121)

.560

382

t95

4,113
4,113
4,113
4,1l3
4,113
4,113

$

$ 20,878

(3,069)

3,800 24,618

$ 17,809
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North Marin Water District
Notes fo the Basic Financial Statcments

I,'or tlre Years Ended.lune 30" 2009 ancl 2008

(I2) Long-Term Debt, continued

Iìr¡ ntl s Payc hl c, c ott I i tt u cd

1980 Revcnue Bonds - Issuc PRIù-I

On Augr"rst 22.,1980, the District issued revenue lronds totaling $240,000 lbr the system rehabilitation of
the Paraclise iìancir Hstates (Pllil) w¿rter distriltution systenr.

Thc l-ioncls arc schcdulcd io traturc in 2û20. Plinci¡ral is payable annually olr A¡rril l'r ¿uld interest is
payable setni-anttually on Octobel' l" and April l'' at ¿r rate of -5.0007c. Futule aunual debt service
rcnuiretrrr'rrls ort llre l'lorrd. :u',' :rs lnllou,ç'

Iì'iscal Ycar Principal Intercst Total

20l0
20l t

2012
2013

2014
201 -5-2() 1 9

2020

T<l{al

I..,ess clu'rc:nl por(iorr

'l-otal ¡ron-cuLrent

13,000

9,000

9,0(x)

10.(xx)

I0.(x)0
59,(XX)

13.000

5,900

5,5(X)

5.050

4,60(l
4,1 00

12,350

650

13.9()0

14..5(X)

i4,0.5()

14,6(X)

14,I (X)

7l,3-50

13,650

$

$ I 18,000

(8,0(x))

3u,l-50 1.56,150

$ 110,000

I98I Revenue Bonds - Issue PR-6

On August 28, 1981, the Districl issued reveuue bonds totaling Íi217,800 to finance the lìlrther worlt
Ileeded to rehabilitate the Point Iìeyes and Lrvelness Parh rvatel' systerns inoludillg the addition o1' a
300,000 gallon tank in Point Reyes Station and a 100,000 gallon tank in lnverness Parl<.

The bonds ale schedulecl to mature in 2022. Principal rs payable annually on July l" and intelest is
payable senri-antrually on July l'' ancl January l't at a rate of 5.0007o. lìuture annual clebt service
requircnrents on the lronds ¿u'c as l'clllows:

I,'iscal Ycar' Princi¡ral Ilrtcrcst Total

20l0
20l l

2(Jt2
?013
2014

20t5-2019
2020-2022.

ïirtal

Lcss r:urrenl portion

TotlÌ nol.l-cuLt'enl

7,(XX)

7.(XX)

8,(XX)

tt,(xx)

8.(XX)

49.(n0
3.5.000

5 ()15

5 575

-5.200

4,tÌ(x)

4,400
t.5, t25
2,615

12,925

12,515

13.2(X)

12,13(x)

12.400

64,125
31,6'15

_____165,700_

$

$ì 122,000

(7,0(n)

$, I t -5,000

43,7( x)



North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded June 30" 2009 and 2008

(12) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loan Payable

1977 U.S. EDA Loan - Novato Water segnrent

lrr August l9JJ,the District secured a loan with the U.S. Economic Development Administr¿rtion (EDA)
to assist in the fundiug emelgency Novato Water systen'ì projects in response to a severe drought.

Theloanisscheduledtorxaturein20lB.Principal andintelestarepayableannuallyonJuly I'tatarateof
5.000%. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2010
201 I

2012
2013

2014
20r,5-20r8

Total

I-ess cullent por(ion

Tol¿il non-curlent.

I I,UU0

12,414

13,097

13,752

14,440

65,245

6,544
.5,950
5 1?7

4,612
3,9U4

8,346

$ 8,424

8,424

8,424

8,424

18,424

73,s9t

$ 130,rì8rì

(r r,r,ì80)

34,fì2.ì 165,1|

$ I 19,008

1977 U.S. EDA Loan - West Marin segment

In August 1977,the District secured a loan with the U.S. Economic Development Administration (EDA)
to assist in the fundirìg en'ìergency West Mal'in system projects, including telnporary diversions fi'om Bear
Valley Cleek and Lagunitas Creek, in response to a sevele drought.

Theloanisscheduledtornaturein20lB.PlincipalandinterestarepayableannuallyonJuly I'tatarateol'
5.0001o. Future annual debt service requirements on the loan are as follows:

Fiscal Ycar Principal lntcrcst Total

20r0
20lt
2012
2013
2014

2015-20I tì

]Ìfal

l-ess cr¡r'r'ent porti orr

Total non-currenl.

939

8.5 r

7.5u

661

559

t,101

2,'103

2,704
2,103
2,703
2,104

r0,r3s

$

$

1,764

1,rìs3

1,1)45

2,042
2,145
9 028

18,111

(1 ,164)

$ _l_7,0ß_

4,815 . ì l¡5?
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North Marin Water District
Notcs to the llasic lìinancial Statements

Iìor the Years Bnded .lune 30. 2009 and 2008

(tr2) Long-Term Debt, continued

I.oan llay a ltl.c, c o nti uu e d

2003 Hamilton Bouttdary Liability

On Januat'y 16.2003, arì ¿rgleernenl w¿ìs executed with the Marin Municipal Watel District to recxganize
the rvatel sel'vice boundary at Hanrilton Air Fol'ce Base which lies in the south east section o1'the City of
Novato. The District receivecl capital assets including fhe 1.0 nillion gallon Air base T¿rnl< and 15.157 ft.
of transmission lines. 'l'he agleenrent called lbr an initial payrrent oll Malch 29,2003 of $90-5,193 and six
additional payrrents o1'f1200,000 due each July l'' fi'o1n 2003 through 2008. Ì.-or interrral accounting

llurposes an illterest rate o1'-5.07o was irnputed on the liability and the liability has been cliscountecl
accol'drngly. 'lhr: lralance o1' the liahility was paid-ol'f in 2008 ¡l'ior to its J u ly I , 2008 f inal payntent d¿ttrì.

2005 DWR l-oan - Novato Water segntenl
I-^ ôl\l\< .l^- l\: ¿,-:^' -,-, -,-- 1 :,-'- ,- :.1- ,l- 

^ 
r:Jl- I h ¡ \L , nlil -uu.). llrç t-4strrtt ulttutuu illt() iut ilLlluLlilcllt wlUt Lltc \.uil1()lillit l-rcl)¿ul,iltuilt ()t vvlltct l\('s()ulucs

(DWR¡ for a loan in an amount not-to-exceed fì16,.528,8-50 with an intcrest r¿rte of 2.39V,, ¡rer annum for'
Ihe reconstruction of thc-. Stafford Watcr Tl'clatment Plant. Pl'incipal and interest paynrents on the lc¡an ¿l'e

due each yeal'on.lanuary I'r ancl .luly 2"'ì.

'I'hc loall is schcdulcd to ulature in l'iscal year 2030. The loan will be lcpaid semi-aunually over a 2O-year
period basecl on the repayrnent scheclule bel<lw:

lìiscal Ye¿¡r Frilrci¡ral lntcrest '['ot:rl

2010

20lt
2012
2013
2014

2015-2019

2020-2024
2025-2029

2030

'lirtal

[,ess ctrllcnt ¡roltiolr
'liltal non-cullcnl

197,5 l9
383,351

367,45ri

35 r,1 79

334,510

1,40u.152

92't.048
3ii-5,25 3

\.) "t11

1.044.414

1"044,415

1,044,4'/4

1,044,414
s ))) ?71

< tlt 171

\ a)1 a1)

5?1 1 lR

s 324,118
661.r23
617,011
fì()? 105

109,964
3,8t4,22(\
J..)r)5 114

4,837,I l9
516,070 168(r

$ I(r,52tì.1ì-50

(.324,118)

4,360.638 20,tJlJ9,4nrJ

li 16.204J32
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Nortlr Marin Water District
Notes to the llasic Financial Statements

For the Years Ended June 30,2009 and 2008

(12) Long-Term Debt, continued

Loan Payable, con,ti,nu ed

2005 SWRCB Loan - Novato Recycled Water segntent

In 2005, tlie District entered into ¿ur agreement with the Califomia State Water Resources Control Board
(SWIìCB) for a loan in an amount of $4,302,560 with an interest rate of 2.4Vo per annum fbr the

constructiou of a recycled water facility.

Tlre loan is scheduled to mÍìture in 2021. Principal and interest ale payatrle annually on June l9'r'at a rate
of 2.4a/r,. Future annual debt sel'vice requirements oll the loan are as lollows:

Fiscal Ycar Principal lnferest Total

2010

20tI
2012
2013
2014

2015-2019
2020-2024
2025-202'7

Total

$ r 78,380

182,662

187,045

191,534

t96,r3r
1,053,.563

I ,I86,207
182,256

94,987

90,70,5

86,322
rì I ,833
77,236

313,2-72

ItÌ0,62u
31,845

a'77 ?6'7

273,361

273,361

213,361

2'13,361

I,3ó6,835
1,366,83.5

820,I0l

$ 3,957,118

( r 78,3n0)

962,828 4,i)20,6()6

Less crlrrent pol'lion

Total non-currcnt l|, 3,779,39tÌ
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the Years Bnded.lune 30" 2009 and 2008

(13) Net Assets

Crtlct¡ìaliol ()l'nrìt iisscls ¡rct. lìrnrl as ol JrirtL: 30, 20(X). wc'l e ¡s fìrllou's:
Novato
Wltftr

N ovato
Iìccyclcd

Wcsl l\4¡rin
Wl fcr

Or:cana l\larin
Sc rv cr 'l'olal

3,180,.54t

7tì.112(r.llÌl

( 3{),(Xrq )

(5t6.142)

(2 lJl ,lt 09 )

(20,1 19.5.51)

Ncl iuvcslDlcnl irì crìpilrl ¿ìsscts:

C'ryìtal asscts, not bcing rlcplcciuterl
l)c¡rlcci itbìc crl)i t¿l ¿rssùts, r'rcl

(l u rlt:ll:
Iìonds p;tyablc

L,olns plyable

Nor-cuil cnl:

tlolttis pl)'¡blc
l-ouns plyabic

'Iolal r'rcl invrrstnrc'n1 in caltilltì lsscts

lìcsu ictcd nrl irssù1s:

Corn¿clion f Èc rtrscr',,ir

Wohlcr' ¡ti¡rcì inc I csclvc
Collcctor No, (r rcsctvr-
()lenll boncì rt'sclvc
( .rslr rt'sr'r \t' l'il (l( lrl sr'r\i!('
A(( t t¡ù(ì ìtltci r'\l lr'l rlclll s.'r r irr'

Tolul rcstrictcd nLìr Nsscls

t,l ¡r'eslr-ìctcrii nc.t asscls:

Non s¡rcnrllble ¡lcl asscls:
(,rìrronl:

N4att'ri¡ls arrd su¡rplìcs invcnt(x y
l)t c¡rlti,l ¡ ¡¡r¡¡1s¡5 lr¡lrl rlell0sils

Non-cLln r:nt:

Nolc rccciv¡blc lllack Point Cìol1'Linhs
Nrilcrs lcet'ivtblc - clr¡rloyL:c hotrsing lolrns

Tolal norì-sl)rìr)(ltt)Ic tìcl asscts

S ¡rntlitLrlc nct rìsse ts llù (lcsigrìrìtLl(l as fìlllows:
Opelaling i cscrve

'l'otal spcnclable Ìrù( ¿ìss!ìls

'lìltll ullcstriclctÌ lcl Assr:ls

'li)tiìl uct Ítsscls

91.93 |

4,.5 (r4,441ì

II1.ô83
4.1 18,142

s 2.976,r t9
69,3 89.02rì

rì01]

753.963

(3 3ó,5 98 ) (r7r1,3rJ0i

5 5,7 05,40e

(Ih,3:.ì.IJ{)) (.ì,77e,1()x

(30.0ó9 )

( r ,764)

(2 ¡ì2,rì(19 )

( r?,0 r3)

Oqti,(r0l 3,u9l{,770 1 54 .111 6t,057,551

f )71 f^-)

.s ô8.1 25

2,I 19.828
1l lr.S

21{1,34:l r {/lr.¡ ?l ì,1

5ô8,t 25

2.1 l9.rì28
1) lrr5

52,964
r7 ?R5r

-52,9 (Ì4

(?,2 tì5 )

3,91ì1,980 256,022 6ô.329 4.3 04,3 31

5 rì11,4 99

26,165

l,ì9ô.71.ì5

3,7 33,4rJ4

2,tl9(r.052

l.6lló 3.095

.5 fltì.4 99

3 r .546

2.u 9ó,052

r,r!!ör
;1,7 l2,l{82l.{J 12.049 2,896.052 l.ó86 3.095

3,733,484 3.820

5,545,5 33 2,l{ 99,tì 72

(ô99,059 )

(699,059 )

(óe7,3 73 )

t10.1 61

110.t 61

113,262

994,3 62

3,20rì,4 r2

3,20u,4 l2

1 ,921 ,2q4

__-z];-!u_z!_

.1,820

\ rr5.2.ì1,()ll .ì,5()lì.4 7.ì .ì,_1.57,4 l,)

(14) Deferred Compensation Savings Flan
lìol tfre benel'it of its ernployees, tl-ìe Dlstrict participates in a 451 Def'erred Conrpensation Progr¿ìn-ì
(Ploglarn). The pulpose ol'this Progran is to provrde delèrred conrpensation for publrc enlployees that
elect to participate in the Prograur. Gencìrally, eligible erïployees lïay defer receipt o1'a portior.r of their
s¿ìlaly until ternrination, retirerïent, cleath ol' unforeseeable emergency. Until the linds arLr paid or
otherwise, lnade availatrle to the eulployee. the enr¡lloyee is not obligated to lellolt the def'erred siìlaly lbr
irlcor.ue tax purposes.

l.-ederal law requires delèrred con-ìpensation assets to be held in trust lol'the exclusive benefit ol'the
partrcipants. Accordingly, the Distl'ict is in conlpliance with this legislation. Therel'ore, these assets al'e

not the legal ploperly ol'the Distnct, and are not subject to claims of the District's general creditors.
Market value of the plan assets held in trust at June 30, 2009 and 2008 was fì2,.543,787 and 52,540,22J,
respectivoly.

The District has impleurented GASII Statellent No. 32, At:cor,rnÍiug ctrul Ì¡'inanciul ll.e¡xtrting.fttr Internul
Reven,ue Cotle Seclit¡n 457 I)e.l'erred Cont¡ten,sutit¡n Plun,ç. Since the District has little adrninistrative
involvenrent and does not perfon-n the investing function l'or this plan, the assets and telatcd liabilities are

rìot shown on the st¿rtclncnt 0l'nct asscts.
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North Marin Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Iror the Years Ended June 30. 2009 and 2008

(15) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

PIan Description

The District contributes to the Caìilbrnia Public Ernployees Retirenrent Systern (CaIPERS), a cost-shaling
multipìe-employer defined benefit pension plan. CaIPERS plovides retirement and disability benefits,

annual cost-of-living adjustments, nr.rd death trenefits to plan menrbers and beneficraries. CaIPEIìS acts as

a coruïìon investment and administr'¿rtive agent for participating public agencies within the State of
California. Benefit ¡rrovisions and all other requilements are established by state statute and the Authority.
Copies of CaIPERS ¿u.rlual financial repoil may be obtained fbrm their executive Office: 400 P Street,

Saclamento, CA,958I4.

Funding Policy

The contribution rate lbr ¡rlan rnerrbers in the CaIPERS 2.57¿ at 55 Risk Pool Retilerrent Pl¿rn is 87o ol'

their annual covel'ed salary. The Distl'ict makes these contributions required of District enrployees on their
behalf and for their account. Also, the District is required to contribute the actuarially deterr-nined

remaining atnounts necessal'y to fund the benefrts for its members. The required erlployer contribution
rates are equal to the annual pension cost (APC) percent¿ìge of ¡rayroll for fiscal year 2009, 2008 and 2007

as noted below. The contribution requil'ements of the plan rnernbel's are established lry State statute, and

the ernployer contribution rate is established and rnay be amended by CaIPERS. For fiscal yeals 2009,

2008 and 2007, the District's annual contributions fol the CaIPERS plan were equal to the Distlict's
required and actual contributions lbr each fiscal year as follows:

Annual Pcrcentage Net APC
Fiscal Pensiotr <lf APC Pension Percentage

Year Cost (APC) Contribufed Obligation of'Payroll

2006-2001

2007-2008

200u-2009

rì06,896

8s9,22t
904,189

100(/(,

100%,

l00q(,

$ 13.986%,

13.841q(

14.3(¡ll/,'

(16) Risk Management
The Distl'ict is exposed to vatious risl<s oJ' loss lelated to torts, theft of, damage to and destl'uction ol'

assets; el'rot's aud omissions; injuries to ernployees; and natul'al disasters. The Dtstt'ict purchases

commercial irlsrtrance ¡rolicies with a variety o1'coverage including an $10.0 rnillion excess general

linbility policy with a fì1.0 million self'-insuled letention limit, a $46,218,000 pt'o¡lerty and equiprnent
policy, a $3.0 million public official's policy and a f[500,000 employee dislionesty bond.

(17) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncelrents prior to June

30, 2009, that has efïective dates that rnay inr¡ract future financlal presentatiolts.

Goverrunental Accouttting Standards Board Statentent No. 51

In June 2008, the GASB issued Statement No. 51, AccounÍilt.g an,cl Financial Re¡torting.fttr Intan¡4ibl.e

A,s,sets. This statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope ¡rrovisiolts
be classified as capital assets. This statement is not effective for this District until the frscal year ended

June 30, 2010. This statement is rnay have an impact on tlre presetrtation of the District's ftnarlci¿rl

statenrents.

Goverrun,ental Accouttting Standørds Board Statentent No. 53

In .lune 2008, the GASB issued Staternent No. 53, At:cotuttirtg an,tl Fin,uttt:iul lleporting ,for Derit,atit,e
In.stru.nten.t,ç. This statement addresses the recognition, measul'elnent, and disclosure of information
regarding del'ivative instrunrents entered into by state and local govelnmellts. This statement is not

eflèctive fbr the Distlict until the fiscal yeal ended.lune 30, 2010. This staten.rent is not expected to have a

significant iurpact on the presentation of the District's financial statements.
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North Marin Water Distnict
Notes to the Basic Financial St¿rtements

For the Years Iìnded.Iune 30.2009 and 2008

(18) Comnritments and Contingencies

W alil.er/Collector N o. 6 Agreentent

The Drstnct rs party to an iÌgreer-nent with the Sononra County W¿ìter Agency lAgency) that provides,
atlong othel'mattel's, that the District is oblgated to pay for a prorated shat'e ol'certaill Agency's costs to
iltttï'ovc oI rìxr')lrìd flre Artert,'v'\ w:rlel rrfilifv rrl:nlf Tlrrr:roleerrrerìf t'xnir,rq rln lrrrr.' lll fOrl.f):uvl içr r -- -J _"_ .'_'-'_/ I _-".'' - "' -.Þ_ ','t ,, -.'

subject to renewal lbr 40-year ten"ns. Under the agreement, the Dtstrict is obligated to pay ptomptly all
billings fl'onr the Agency attd tray not withliold p¿ìyrììelìt ¡:errdirrg lusrrlr:l.iun ul'tlis¡rutcs, il'urry, wlriclr
might exist betweell the District and the Agency.

N ovalo San ilary Di strict

The District has enteled into ¿r contract with the Novato Sanitaly District (NSD) whlch requilcs NSD to
supply secondat'y treated el'l'luent o1' sul'l'icient quantity to the District lbl the recycled watel' tl'eatl-ìtellt
o¡relation. The District shall ¡ray NSD $20 per yc'.ar for all annual lease of the site fbr the recycled water
treatment facility.

C onslruc ti,ou Co ntra.cts

The District has ¿t r¡ariely of agreenrents u,ith developers and private ¡rallies relatrng to the installa(ion,
itr¡lt'ovenrent or modif ication of transmissron licilities and distribution systenrs within its sclvicc nlca.
The fin¿rncittg of such itnprovements is ¡rrovided prirlalily lì'orr advances for constl'r,lction and the
distncts capttal rcplitcctncnt rcscrvc. Thc District has cornrnitted to approximately $360,920 of o¡reu
construction cotìtt'âcls ¿rs ol' Julre 30, 2009.]'hesç inclu<le:

T-. ¿ .,1I rtt¿rr

A¡rproved
Contract

tl^t^--_- _.
DärätItc

Io
Proicct Narnc Conr¡rlefc

Palurcl Dlive tank

Ou(lct torvcl slucc galc

Pon(i trnk

'lbtal

$, 2,407,680

9tì3.600

217,853

$ 3,(r09,133

240,167

97.990

22,t63

360,920

Grant Awards

Grant filnds receivecJ by the District ale subject to audrt by the grautor agencies. Such audits could lead to
reqnests fol' reimbursements to the grantor agencies lbr experrditures dis¿rllowed under ten.us ol'the glant.
Matragetnent olthe District lrelieves that such disallowances, if any, would not lre signil'icant.

Litigation

In the orclinary course clf opelations, the Distlrct is subject to clainrs ancl litigation 1ì"om outside pirties.
Aliet'consultation with legal courrsel, the Drstrict believes the ultinrate oì:tcolì'ìe ol'suclr llatters, il'any,
will not natelially aflèct its l'inancial condition.

(19) Change in Accounting EstÍmate

ln 2009, the District re-evaluated its capital asset de¡rreciable lrves and expensed an approximatel¡, $7.7
millton non-cash charge to depreciatiort expense due to the District's change in the accounling cstinrate
lbl deprecration.
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North Marin Water District
Combining Statement of Net Asscts
trì'or the Year llnclcd.lune 30" 2009

,4ss¿fs

(ìullcnt asscts:

C'ash antì cash ec¡uivalcnts

lìestlictod - cnsh and cash ec¡nivalcnts
Accl uccl intclcst rccciv¡blc
Accrou n ( s l trcc i r,¡l-r lc u,a(cl' atitl sr\\'rlr siìlLìs

Accounts lcccivitlrlc .-- govclnrtrcrrtitì agclrcics
Accountrì rirccir,¡blc othcl'
Nolc lcccivablc -- Black Point Coll'l-inks
Nolcs tcc:civablc -. enrPlol,ec conrpulcr Ioans

[\4¿ltclials and su¡rplics itìvenlot ]/
ì)r'r'¡rititl ex¡rcnscs itrttl tlc¡rosils

'l-ot¿ìl cut't'cn t asscts

Non-currenl âssets:

Ilr vcsl nlc nt s

Iìcstrictod investntcnts

Intclnal balanccs

Notc lcccivablc lllack l)oint Coll' l.inks
Nolcs lcccival¡lc - cnr¡rlo¡,ùù llrusin.u, loans

Cìa¡ritrl asscts, not bcing rlc¡rlcciated
l)cpror:iable callit¿ìl ¿ìssel s, nct

Tolltl no¡r-cul rcnt asscts

'lÌrt¿l ¿¡ssets

Liuhilities and Nel Asscts

Culrcnt liabilitics:
Accounts lla)/alllc 'uld acct uecì cx¡tcnsr:s

Ar:crt¡ocl wa gcs lnrl ¡'cl ¿r{cd l)¿ì)/iÌl)lcs
Aùctued clainrs ¡rayable
Custonrcl adt,anccs ancl tlc¡:rosits

Acrrlued intcl crst p¡yable -- ìon¡l-lor nr rlcbt
l-ong-tcnr liahilitics tìuc withln otìc yciìt:

Cìon.r1.rcrrsa(cd ahscltccs
lìonds payablc

[-oans ¡rayatrlc

Total cur'ùnt li¡hilitrcs

Non-cullcnt liabiIilics:
L,ong-lc|nr li¡bjlitics .- cluc in nro|c lh¿n onc )/ciìl

Clonrl)cnsatc(i atrsencos

Other' ¡rosl-enr¡rloynrcnt boncl i ts payablc

lìorrds payablc

Loans ¡rayablc
'lìttirl rlort-culn'rlt lilrlrilities

lbtal li¿¡bilitic¡^

Nct assr:ts:

Nct invcstment in crapital asscts

Iìestrictcd lìrr capital pro.jecrts iìrìrl (lcl)t sct vicù
Unl'estliclcd

'lìrfal nct assets

lÌrtal li¿¡bilifies a¡rd ¡tcf ¿rs-qcls

Novato
Water

2,1.r56.60I

2,322,11tt6

.5n.325

307..17tì

)2.t21

4.1 36

5tÌtii.499

26,165

Nor,¿to

lìecvcled
Wesl Marin

W¿rtcr

52.964

ò+.òr)j

1.6136

Occan¿¡ N4arin

Scrv¡ll 'ì'otnl

5ì ló0.926
6tì.4 38

I -1.ì1-1o

1,918

3.095

1,0n,521
2.444,2rì8

58,32s

2.ô80.03 l

301 .3't8
I2B,ú)l
1713,560

4.1 36

58rJ.499

3 1,54ó

9,438,893

99,050

I7tt,.56()

u,739,(XX)

2,0t31.7.s-s

(rU9,44.5

I , l96,7ll.s

2.()76,1y.)
(r9.3t{9.028

(230.ó23)

2,rJ96,052

9 t.931

4,.5ó4,44rJ

(4.sll.rì22)

3 t2^ I 6lì 1.19.5 l2 24 tì.2 I 3

76.336 132 7.32 t.1J01{

il 1,683

4,t 18.142

3,771 ,o()3

lì( )lt

753.9ó3

2,0r34.7.55

2,u96.052

I.l9().71ì5

3. m0.541

7tì,112(r.lll I

I54.11 t rìr3,rrJ4.3l4

5i 13.5.075. t32 7,63.1,97(1 3.91 l.l 1.5

14.136
llì.ti4,1

2.9u!)

95,9 l2
7,2tì5

t713,3tì0

2.s6. 105

.10,069

I .7 6,1

I .53.874

1,002.91.ì4 97.623.207

5i | .u 10,2.59

137, I .19

14,400

425.66 t

ô.544

590

,5.923

2.t09

t.8lt.5..5u5

36 t.90ó
14.4(X)

523,6rì2

l6,rì ilì

l0t.110 lot,l't0
30,06!)

5 t6,14233ó,598

3,032.37 I 13,022 3,450,972

305.3 I0
Iu l ,3rì_q

30.5,3 |0
t8 t.38!)

2lJ2,n0!)

20.1 19.551r 6,323. 1 40

!(),{!l?,tì,i!2

19.rJ42.210

3,779,398

3,779,3q8

2rì2.r.ì09

I7.0 I 3

rÌ99.lJ22

453.69(r

20.t3tì9.05!l

4,035 ,.503 8.622 24,340.03 |

55,705.409

3,9tì 1,9rJO

5,545,533

691ì.60I 3.rì9rì,770

2t0.343
(65 I .ó94)

154,7'7 I

ó6..129

173.262

6 t ,057,.5.5 I

.1,258,(¡.52

Lt)(-¡6,913

() 922

2.rJ99,rJ72

3,59rJ,473 3.451 .4t9 994,3ó2 73,21Ì.1 ,n6
s lì.5,07.s, 1 32 3.91 t, t l5 I,(n2.9tì4 t)] .623.201

40

7,ó33,976



Assets

North Marin Water District
Combining Statement of Net Assets
For tlre Year Bnded.lune 30. 2008

Novato
Water

Novato
Ilecycled

West Marin
Wafer

Oce¡¡rra Marin
Servcr 'I'otal

Cufl enl âssefs:

Cash a¡rcl caslr ec¡uivalents

Iìestricted - cash ancl cash ec¡uivalents

Acclued interest receivable
Accounls Íeceivaìrle water'¿ìnd seweÍ sales

Accounts lcceivablc - govelnnrcntal agcncies

Accounts leceivable - 0ther-

Note lcccivablc - Ilìaok Point Goll'Links
Nolos lcccivallle - en.r¡rltiycc com¡rutcr loans

Mate|ials and su¡rplies ilìventory
Plcpaicl cx¡renses ancl de¡rosits

Totaì current asscts

Non-culrent asscls:

Invgsl nlcnts

lìcstl'ictecl - i rrvesturents

Intclnal balances

Notc rcccivable - lllack Poinl Goll'Links
Notcs roceivablc - crnploycc housing Ioans

Ca¡rital asscts, not being cleplccialed

I)e¡r'eci ablc ca¡ri tul asscts. net

T<ital non-cr¡r'rent asscls

'lotal ¿rssets

I.iahilitics and Nct Assats

Culrcnt liabilities:
Accounts payable ancl acclusd exl)enscs

Accluecl wages ancl lelated pa¡'¿þl05

Acclucd clainrs ¡rayable
Customcr ¿tdvanccs ancl clcposits

Accluecl intelesf ¡rayable --long{clnr clebt

Long-telnr li¡bilitics - due withirr oue year:

Conr¡rensated al)senccs

13onds payable

Loans payablc

'lÌrtal cullent liabilitics

Norr-cullent li¡hilitìes:
Long-tel'nr liallrlities - due in r)lorc tlìan one year':

Corrrpensated abscnces

Othcr' ¡rost-employnrent bcnelìts payable

Iìonds payable

Loans ¡rayabìc

Total non-cullent liabi litics

'I'otal liabilities

Nct îssets

Net invcslrnent in cal)ital assels

lìestlictecl fìrr capital ¡rr'<¡ccts aDd clcl¡t sel vicc
Unlestlictecl

'lbtal nct ¿rsscts

'l'otnl liabilities and nct assefs

$ 5, I 23,833

95 1.390

144,58(r

2,288.403
5c)0.866

I6t,280

90,.s38

t6r),413

54,812

19.952

18,144

5"7,444

t2;775

s0.9.55

.ì.4.1(r

.s,293.I I 5

1,0(r3,ó4(r

144.5tìó

2.550,m3
590,tì(r(r

226,514
114,332

8.1(r4

634.3"t5

33,416

14,219

t]4,332
tì. I (r4

634.3'15

30,040

o o'ì') oì7 448,622 134,',764 203,354 10.1 t9,617

439,9ff)
3,6tì3,3 ltì

59 t,506

879,2(X)

7,493,383

61 ,646.223

80,733,590

$ 90,(r(16,527

3,074,612

951 .82(r

3,7 t3,869

'7 ;7 40,307

I, I 88,929

I I 1,882

4.694,8 r l

5(r,341

145,156

439,960
3,ó83,318

3,014,6t2
tì79,2(X)

8,ó l 3,432

76,800,059

(591 ,.s06)

4,21 5, t 87

4,349,951

801 ,491 93,490,58 r

l.004,85r r04,210,258

s t,14s,024
141 1 Áa

23.403
t)32,'759

90.5(r3

3.063,99(r

93,626

2,96t

t74,t99

21(\.186

|,842,215
298.141

24,557

952.151

6,73t

l9,tÌ38
884

I t3.950

3,',l70

t1 0?l

3.5ó5

6.062

2'70

1.042

90,5(r3

22,923
114,199

(r(r,3(r5 r0,939 3,41 2,086

27 t,ó88
90.lurì

15,82'7,0'13

16,l rÌ8,949

3,95'7,'7"78

3.95't,118

3 r 2,tì7 tì

18.111

33 l,(r5-5

27 l,6t3f.ì

90, I 88

3 12,878

r9.803,628

20.478.382

19,252,1)45 4,228.564 39tì,020 r 0,939 23,f190,4ó8

59,31 2,533

4.(r34,708

1,4(¡6,341

533,7 rtì

3,426,641

4,452,115
51,042

(5sr,226)

80 r .497

51 .444

134,97 t

(r5,099,tì(r3

4.143.11)4

10,4'76,133

'7 I,413,582 3,960,36-5 ?05 I,9.1I 99.ì,91 2 80,3 r9 '71)(\

$ 90.(r(ró,527 1,004,8-51 104,210,2.s8

4t

8, I 88,929 4,349,951



North Marin Water District
Cornbining Statcmcnt of Rcvcnues, Expenses and Changes ill Net Assets

Iror the Year Ended June 30,2009

Nov¿fo
Water

9,9 t4,996
I .503,64 |

Novrfo
llec¡,cled

Wcsf N{alin
\\/ater

Occana N,larin
Ses,cl' 'lbt¿¡l

Opclatirr g lc\,ùrlLrcs:
'Wiìter consunrptitrll salcs

l3i-monthly rnct¿r solvicc c:h¿r'!lc

Seq,Cl. sCr.r'iCcr crhal.gCS

Wirtcl- conscrvation lcimbulscmcnts
Othcl chargcs antl selviccs

Tutal o¡rulutirrg rcv0lues

Opclating exllcnses:

-(¡'-tt cc ¡1' sLrl-.l-.|),

Pu ni¡ring
Walcl l¿rr:i lit ics o¡rtrlations

Watcr tfcâ{nlcnl
'l lansnrssion anrl clistribr¡tioll
Scq,agc collcctir)n ¿ìn(l trcatrìrenl

C\lstontcl sclvicc
C:icncl al antl arlministrati\/ù
Inìllrovcrìrent pltt jccts

w¿ìtrìt cotìscrvittion ¡tlo jects

'ìiltal o¡tcr-atrng cxl)etìses

Opclatrng loss bclilo ovtrlhcacì absor¡rtiorr
( )vclhcad thsor'¡rtion

Opclating krss bclìrrc dcplcciation
i)c¡rlccì atiorr

Opcrai:ing loss

Norì-ol)cl atirìg I cvcnrrcs(exltcltscs):
ì)t o¡rclly Iax rcvcrìuc

Ilìvgstnlclll clu nings
ììcntal lci,enLrc

lntcrcst cx¡rensc .. long-tclnr clcbl

Wohlcr/Collecttrr No. (r aglrrcrncnl

I-,oss on saltr/cìis¡rosifion ol' ca¡rr tul asscls, nLìt

Othcl non-o¡rolaling rcvenucs, net

'lìltal non-ol)er'¿ìting rcverìues, ncl

Nol loss bclìr'e ca¡rilal cr¡nfributit¡rrs

Capital contribLrtions:

l)cvclopcls anrl othLìr's

C'onlrcrction lìcs

(ìapital contlibutions

(lhange iu uef ¿rsscls

Not itsscts, bcginning ol ),car'

Nct assols, cnrl o1'ycar'

I .791

lt.r49
I()0,()5:l

t7,005

2.]2(\
47.u01

t4.961)

1i7.lJ70

ti2.3ri.s

3,9(r0,?8lJ

339.236
578.86tÌ

i.7ti 1,5 t6
2,33.5.(Xr7

9U.7 l5
.so.s.2 I tì

I ().11 s))
r ,.5 89.4 I 3

¡!2,2!1)
t3,63c1,603

.b 2t] ,554
1.64ó

440,1Ì IrJ

7(r.I20

2..598

t47.9 t8

2l

I0.573,168
I.5ri 1.407

I47.9 I tì

t6.06¡.Ì

207..533

t6.06tì
204.ó¡ì6 222

I I .(r39.191 219.42) 5 19,.53(i t41 945 t2.526.2i)4

,r,r)-s ll,4(r8

2fì9.644

552.750
t,59.r.593

2.2.\5.611

48 I ,.504
I llJ {r)r

I ,3 12. I 9¡ì

.507,260

20.28.5

59.5(X)

12.?52

98.7 1.5

3.42!)

24,130I

34,1 9 1

I.s.t99
170.712

:ì I 5,969r2.775.1r6 -tò /..1òi

-t*
l6l,l36_

( r3.191)( r , r35,72.5)

3u2,47lJ

(e6,.s47) ( r ,l 1.1,309)

382.47u

(1s3,241)
(9.024,903)

(96,.547)

( r1 .\.419)
r32.t54

(740.332)
(Ir.r9r)

052.425)

(730,113 I)
il0.091.139)

(9.771ì,150) \270,1t26) (ó08, j 7|i ) il 65,(i i(r) ( 10.ä21.i/7())

321ì,4 l0
41 .961

(3tÌ2.6l.l)
( I t0,246)

19.4l1

rOq I()Sr

(72, lOlJ)

59.()37
1.338

3.(r(X)

(3l,s06)

.+1.59.1

1.496
5(X)

I0:Ì.()30

4 i3.6tì I

.52.(Xr I

(5r3.3r4)
( r 10,246)

t3 i ,448

l4,960 (9 1 ,tì66)

(9,7ó.1,I 90J (3ô I ,U92 )

I ll )4

"La*
(573,685)

1,118

-5 1,367

( l 14,249)

63,t42-

8.954

( l().u l 3,0 | 6)

2,720.346
tl(r2,lll4

,1,¡!?,¡ if )

((r,Ilì0.(160)

71,4r3,582

4,443
74;730

I 05.699
9.(XX)

2.830.4tìrì
94.5.9 I 4

19.\'t3 I 14.699 '.\,116,402

(361,rì92)

1,960,365

(4e4 ,5 t2)

3.95 I .e3l

450

9!)3.9 t2

(7,()36.6 l4)

rJO,3 19,790

.b 6.s,232.922 3,.59u,473 3,4.57,4 r!) 994,362 7.l,ltì1,I7h
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North Marin Water District
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Bnded June 30, 2008

Novato
Water'

Nov¿¡t¡r

Ilecvcled
Wcst N{arin

Water
Ocearr¿¡ Marin

Scu'er 'lìrt¿rl

(),(¡01 
,41)0

1,424,628

t46,642
394,398
20-5.999

Opclating re\/er)ues:

Wâter culsur.nplion sales

Ìli -nronthly nrctel selvice chür'gc

Scwel sclvice chat'ges
'Walel 

crlnscl vation leimbulscrnents
Othol chalges antl scn,ices

'l"olal opùrating lc\/cnr-rcs

Opelating exl)enses:

Sour-ce ol supply

l)unping
Water' l acilitics ol)eriìti0ns
'WÍì1el lle:ìlnleDI

Tlirtsntission antl rlistr'¡hutio¡l

Scwagc collection and tlc¿ì{.nlerll

custome| sclvÌce

Ccnelul onrl u(lnìinislr¡rtivc
Im¡.lt'ovenrenl pfoiects

Watsr conssl viìlion plo jccts

Tolal opelaling cxl)enses

Opelating loss bcfblc ovelheatl absor'ptiurt

Ovclhcad absolption

Opelating loss belbrc de¡rleciation
Depleciation

O¡rerating loss

N(ln-o¡rcr'¡¡1i¡g rcYcDuL's( L'xl)ctìscs ):

P[o1lc|ty lax rcvor.il.ro

Inveslment calnings
Iìcnt¿rl revent¡c

Intelesl expensc - long-tclnr detrt

Wohlcr/Collectol No. (r agl-ecìrnent

Loss on salc/rìis¡rosition o1'caprtal assets, nel

Othel non-o¡lclal.ing revcnues, nst

Totâl non-ollcratil.rg lcvcuucìs, not

Nct l¡rss bcfirrc capital contribr¡fions

Ca¡ritaI crrntlibutions:
l)evelopcls ancl othels

Connection I'ces

Capitnl contribu tiorrs

Change in net assets

Ncl rt¡scls. llcSinntng ol'ycirr

Prior' ¡reliod acljustmenl

Net assets. end o1'yeal

r0,982,3 l3 114.190

:,; 9,030,3 l2
I,354,428

113.q92

I9tì

403. I 86

70.200

2,626

146.642

394,391Ì

203,115

416,012 146.642 1t,779,t51

3,771,3013

3 I9.0ó.5

485,94't

1,535,0(r7

2,264,381

87,126
t2,169

2,901

12.125

51 ,512

I I .106

51 ,31s
20.340

76.58u

109, ltl(r

2t,045
57,tì29

240,010

442.016
1.806,'124

I ,I 28.876
359,74r1

lì4,41 8

3.t80
23.41)t

48,73.5

3,182,414
379,34t
506,287

l,(r98,7131

2,3115.142

84.41 tì

4ó(r.30I

I ,900,I 69

t,415.193
3-59,74tì

13,038,394t2,I l.l,l9lJ t7l,893 593,419 1.59,824

(r,r30,885)

489,91s

11tt'7 (t t1 ,467\
'7 aù'7

(t3,lu2)
2,I89

(t,2s9,237)
499,40t

(640,970)
( 1,546,081)

) aq7

(94,209)
(l 10,r70) ( r0,993)

(27,168)
(7s9,836)

(I,76r,673)/O¿ I ts)

(2,I 87,0-5 l) (91 ,9 l2) (2( )4,3Í1.5) (38,1 6 1 ) (2,521 .509)

1,146

.590,41 5

45,3d)
(377,-538)

( r 14.6rì2)
(4s,93.s)

35,2'7 5

9rì,75tì

( r 03,864)

62.797

2,363
3,373

(38,0tì2)

01,22'7)
I,044

4ó,ltì6
7.5't I

5(X)

(r,18-s)

936

I t0,I29
699, 1 07

49,233
(-5 r9,484)
(l r4,682)
(64,341)

31 ,255

t34.041 (s, 1 06) 14.2(rtl .s4,008 197,2 l I

(2,0s3,0 r 0) (97,0l 8) (190,r l7) t5,841

-5, r46,6 r 6

|,422,606
lfl7 ,614
fl4,(xx)

ì 1,995

9.000

5,546,28.5

1 ,5 t 5,606

6,569,222 41 I,b74 20.99-5 7,0(rl,lJ9l

5i 71,413..5tÌ2

4,516,2t2

6(r,763,(r[i[ì

133,682

(97,0 l rJ)

4,057,3r.r3

2ti r,.557

3,610.314

36,¡i42

9'12,5t6

( 15,446)

993,9 r 2

4,131 ,593

75.463,961

I l1ì,236

3.9(l),3(r-5 3.9-5 l,93 r 80,3 r 9,790
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North Marin Water District
Statistical Section

This part of the I)istrict's comprehensive annual financial repol't presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required suppletrentary
inforrnation says about the Dish'ict's overall financial health.

Table of Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain information to help the reader understand liow the District's
financial pefonnance and well-treing have changed over time.

Paee No.

45-49

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District's rnost

significant own-source revenlle, watel sales.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to lrelp the reader assess the affordability
of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and the District's ability
to issne additional debt in the futurc.

Dernographi c Information
This schedule offers dernographic indicators to help the reader understand the

enviroulnent within which the District's financial activities take place.

Operating Information
This schedule contains service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand

how the information in the District's financial report relates to the servìce the
District provides.

50-s3

.54-5.s

-56

5-t
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North Marin Water District
Changes in Net Assets and Net Assets by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Changes in nel assets:

Operating rcvenues (see schedule 2)

Operating expenses (see schedule 3)

Dept ecialiort alttl anrol tization

Operating income(loss)

Net norr-operating revenue(expense) (see schedule 4)

Net income(loss) before capital contributions

Câpilal contribu{ions

Changes in net aesets $ 4,0 I 8,837 4,702,681 2,1'70,495 4,685,154 3,624,937

s 6,270,965

(7,400,'182)

(783,39 l )

6,645,7 t2
(8, I 42,04ó)

(794,163\

7,378,362

(8,882.856)

(8 l 9,943)

(2,324,437)

I .384,051

7,729,65'l

(7,69s,93 l )

(82.5, r44)

8,54.s,299

(8,s99,620)

1996,414)

( r ,91 3,208)

t,'795,342

(1,,290,49'7)

2,53s,728

(791,4r8)

I,021,ó68

(l,0s0,735)

724.241

(l 17,8ó6)

.{,l3ó,703

245,231

4,457,450

(940,386)

3, I 10,88 l

230,250

4,454,904

(326,494\

3,95 1,431

Nel assets

Llnrestricted

Total net assets

$ 35.009.573

I ¡,809,928

6,990,062

33,313,20',7

I r,7 r8,760

5,90ó,489

35.532,397

9,808,702

5,517,210

49,(166.I I I

6,t4'7,924

9,4 t 0,355

54,732,557

15,275,334

( r,158,564)

$ .53,809,563 50,938,45ó -50,858,309 65,224,390 68,849,321

Chångcs in Nct 
^ssets

$8,500,000
$8.000.000
$7,500.000
$7,000,000
$ó,500,000
s6.000,000
$5,s00,000
$5,000,000
$4,500.000
$4,000,000
s3,500,000
$3,000,000
s2,500,000
$2,000,000
s r .500.000
$ 1.000.000

$500,000
s0

-$s00,000
-$ r ,000,000
-$ | ,500,000
-$2,000,000
-$2,500,000
-$3,000,000
-$3,500,000
-$4,000.000
-$4,500,000
-$5,000,000
-$5,500,000
-$6,000.000
-s6.500,000
-$7,000.000
-$7,500.000
-$8.000.000

ñ

"ds "ñ .ñ .ñ 
"ñ" 

.,S ót" ,S ,ts ,.$

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statenrents
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Schedule 1

Fiscal Year

'l 200s 2006 2007 2008 2009

9,545,264

(9,055,754)

(1,004,844)

10,288,824

(11,286,711)

(1,069,149)

l l,848,037

(l 2,5s5,989)

(r,490,077)

tl,779,1s7
(1 2,538,993)

t2,526,294

(13,257,125')

(10,091,139)

(10,821,970)

8.954

(1:16 1.673)

(s1 s,334)

(38e,534)

(2,067,036)

230,326

(2,t98,029)

1,t78,739

(2,s21,509)

r97,211

(904,868)

2,099,524

(1,836,710)

2,133,298

(1,019,290)

8,639,031

(2,324,298)

7,06r,891

(10,8r 3,016)

3,776,402

t,194,656 296,588 7,619,741 4,737,593 (7,036,614)

54,510,568

6,721,908

9,785,723

57,344,482

7,504,340

6,46s,970

59,290,284

4,994,444

11,179,233

65,099,863

4,743,194

10,4',76;733

61 ,0s7,551

4,304,331

7,92 1.294

71,018,199 71,314,792 75,463,961 80,319,790 73,283,176

Net Assets by Component

$90,000,000

$80,000,000

$70,000,000

$60,000,000

$50,000,000

þñ

â
$40,000,000

$30,000,000

$20,000,000

$10,000,000

-$ l 0,000,000

$o

"dI "S 
.,S 

"s" "S "ñ" "S ,s. 
"S

Fiscal Year
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ffi

North Marin Water District
Operating Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

N/A
NiA
N/A
N/A
N/A

l,3ll,917
r,338,s33

1,412,428
t,424,628
t,581,407

Schedule 2
Fiscal
Year

2000 $

200t
2002

2003
2004
2005

2006
2007

2008

2009

Total Operating

6,059,82 r

6,540,09ó

7,265,822
7,608,878

8,420,132
7,912,004

8,432,210
9,693, I 04

9,607,490
I 0,573,368

21 1,144
105,616

112,540
120,779

125,t67

321,343

-51 8,081

742,505
'747,039

371,519

6,270,965

6,645,712
'7,378,362

7,',129,657

8,545,299

9,545,264
10,288,824
I 1,848,037

11,7',19,157

t2,526,294

l¡
c!

$14,000,000

$12,000,000

$ r0,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000

$0

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements

"ñt .Þs ""s "S "S ñ "".t ""s "s. "d
Fiscal Year

i ,:'
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North Marin Water District
Operating Expenses by Activity

Last Ten Fiscal Years

ItEImJï,ïïiîîlï ffiî'
Schedule 3

IfIîrûìo'e$'¡n¡Fisc¡l

Jg3r-
2(X)0

2(X)l

2l\t2
2(X)l

2004

2005

2{n6

2lxl'l
2(X)lì

2ut)

2.512,218

2,9.31,913

3,619.656

?,122,041

3,902,2r)3

1,654,()13

4.5[8,462

4.5r3,165

3,'il12,4t4

3,960,7ri1r

32rì,85q

344,555

499,"t 38

422.5t14

324,o'tt)

324,1 I I

:158.844

3tJl,?25

?79,141

339,216

371,595

305,280

349,9lt?

33(¡,696

357.9ltlt

5()i).523

5M,491

518,996

5{}6,2117

5?lJ,86tt

831,904

I,042,461)

I, I I 5,955

I,r0{).73?

t,0{18,440

1,028,268

1,205,525

1.30¡.01r3

1,69rJ,78t

t,781.5r6

49,n13

50,200

48,651

54,30-l

54,1r90

68,Il3
8n.99ll

78,328

It4,41rì

9n,715

2,1t7 t,a24

2,300.120

|,892,822

t,+21,429

I,391,ó90

1,7tt3,t40

2,059,03r

2.222,748

2,385;t42

2,315,067

354,547

34'7,7r\9

3lJlt,26fl

365,446

346,86rJ

425,'7ltlt

450.z',ttì

4'74.O82

466.301

505,21n

lì{r0,{)22

8l'7.529

947,',1',tt)

87{),(l95

1,r33,372

1,27r,886

1,632,',15t

1,rJ35,667

I,9()0, I 69

1,943,522

4?8.331l:',

1,221J,395t:r

l,tì35,540'r)

l,'ll¿,t9s "r

?83,391

794.161

rJ19,943

825.t44

996,414

1,004,ri44

1,0ó9,t49

I,490,0??

t;161,6',73

2.4oo,loó (¡)

lr,llì4,173

8,936,209

9,'il)2.t9t
lì.521,075

9,596,034

10,060,598

12,355,860

14.046,{)66

t4,3{X),6ó6

15,657,23t

$18.(xx).(x)0

f;t 6.000.000

$14.000,000

$i12.000.000

li10,000,000

xilt.000,000

$6,000,000

$4,(X)0,000

$2,000,000

$0

Sourcc: h"oÍth Maritr Wrlcr l)¡slricl 
^udilcd 

liirìâflcial Slalcnìcnls

(1) lj\clud!'s $?,69l,033 alcprcciîti(D duc t) changr: il livcs ol nrary as*^ts
(2t lìcduccd by olcrhcâd absorpliut

"ds "S "S 
d$ 

"d "S 
.us" 

"S "s. 
.Ñ

Fiscal Year
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North Marin Water District
Non-operating Revenues and Expenses

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 4
Fiscal
Year

2000

2001

2002
2003

20n4

200-5

2006

2007

2008

2009

571.979

602,894

6ll,366
542,631

600,979

r00.708

82, I 38

91.919

I ¡0,t29
I 03,630

rmI
9l 8.359

r.670,885

720.404
562.005
164.878

402,249

450,799

978.923

699,1Q7

413,ó81

Grant
Revenue

ó I ,000

'Gain/(Loss) on
Sale of À¡æts

3,678
(4,739)

3,ó3-5

( I 5,799)

6,0r5

(157.126\
(64.147)

I
( r 83,439)
(ló 1,389)

( l 3s,667)
(ró4,798)
(r07,839)
( I 94,860)
(35?.937)
(4r r.543)
(sr q.484)

(51 .1,:314)

r
484.765

428.077

r 87.948

78, l 95
2t,022

(703,646)
55.326

670,566
(28, r 94)

4.95'.t

Net Non.operating
Revenues/(Expenses)

1,795.342

2.535.128

l ,384,0s I
1.021.6(18

724.24t
(389,534)

230,326

t,178,739
t97 ,21t

8.954

c!

$3,000,000

$2,s00,000

$2,000,000

$l,s00,000

$r,000,000

$500,000

($-500,000)

($ I ,000,000)

($l,500,000)

$0

,s" "dI "d, "S "S "uS ,ñt ""s .Fs ,ñ"

Fiscal Year

Notes:
( I ) lncludes interest income and realized and unrealized gains arìd losscs on investtnejtts.

',, 
,¡

I

Source: North Malin Water District Audited Financiâl Stateinents

49



North Marin \ilater District
Revenue Base

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenue Base

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 5

3,438
3,730
3,743

3,761
3,824

3,s93
3,498
3,743

3,533
3,460

3,900

3,800

3,700

3,600

3,500

3,400

3,300

3,200

Fiscal Year

Note: See Schedule 2 "Revenue by Source" for information regarding

water sales.

Source: Novato Water District Billing System

Fiscal
Year

2000

200r
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

o

cto

¿

"ñ" "ñ .dY 
"S "S 

.,S 
"ñt "S "ñ. "d
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North Marin Water District
Customers by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 6
fiscal
Year WI CommericaU

Busines

1,135

|,171

t,t 6l
1,190

I,198

1,2t9

1,243

t,253
t,?78

1,280

ffiffiII rotâ,

192

t9't

199

205

209

2t5
2t8
220
114

225

t'|6
t94
187

193

200

207

207

2t4
2t4
2t9

ó55

647

657

657

óó0

6'72

708

1t2
117

720

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

200ß

2009

O

z

16,375

ló,ó01

16,625

16,768

11,0't2

11,642

l 8,034

r I,r 46

I 8,1 57

18,197

22,000

17,000

t2,000

2,000

Source: Nofh Marin Water District - Finance Department

t7¿

749

755

155

759

761

783

789

?90

793

19,265

19,565

19,584

r 9,768

20,098

20,122

2t,r93
2t,334

?1,379

21,434

7,000

"ss .ñ .rd' ,.s "s" .ñ ,.." ,S "È- N
(.ì.000)

Fiscal Year

'1

51



North Marin Water District
Revenue Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 7

l\'lhrirnunr Ilinlonthl]' Scrvice Chargc

l\.lctcr Sizc ó/-10/00 ó/30/01 ó/.10/02 6/-10/03 ó/30/04 6/.10/05 ó/.10/06 6/.10/07 óll0/08 6/.10/09

s/8,,& l/4" $q.00 .19,0{.ì ,$9.00 $().()0 $9.(}0 lìr0.00 lir0.00 .$10.00 5ì10.00 $13.20

l" .$l8.tm $18,00 $18.00 llltì.()r) .$18.00 $20.00 li'2t).00 $20.00 $20,00 $26.4()

t v2 s22.00 .î22.00 $22.00 $22.00 $22.00 1i24.00 $24.00 $24,0{l $24.00 li'12.40

2" s34.00 .$3,1.00 ,q34.00 $34.00 $34.00 $38.00 ,$38.{10 .38.011 $.18.00 $50.10

3" $(18.00 fiô8.00 $ó8.00 $68.00 .Íó8.00 $75.00 .$75,00 .$75.00 $75.00 ,$9q.60

4" $r 12.00 $l 12.00 $l 12.00 $l 12.00 $l I2.0{) $120.00 s120.00 ,$120.00 $120.0u $1s9.60

6,' s226.00 fi226.00 ,$226,00 $226.01) i,226.00 $2s L00 $25 r .00 $2s 1.00 $25 l .00 $134.80

8,', $33tì,{r0 ,$338.00 $l3rì.lx) $338.00 .$338.{)0 .$375,00 $3?s.00 $175,00 $175.00 s19q,20

Water [Jsc Ratc (ncr 1.000 Gallors)

Uscr'l't'Jrc ó/30/00 ó/.10/01 6t30t02 ó/30/03 ó/.10/04 6/t0/05 6l3t)106 6130107 6/.11y08 6/.10/09

lìcsidcntiirl

Zore A lJase Iìalcrrr
'l'ier l: 6l(r1845.u¡xl
'l'ier 2: > I 845 gpd

Non-lìcsidential

ZoDc A Ilîsc Iìilte¡lt

.58.48SI

NiA

N/A

$1,30

N'\
N/^

st.2ó

N/,^

N/A

$1.64

N/,4

$5.rrrr

$1.18 $t.58 $r.64

$3.6 I

$(r.28

,$3.02

$4.8 1

l'8.36

$

N/A

1,2,{) I

N/A

,$ó.02

() )r

N/^

$6.22

.\2.21

$1.6 r

$6.28

$1.26 rir.30 $2.01 $2.21 .2.41 $2.(rl $1.18

Noles:

( I ) lìttcs showil c\clu(lc a(lclrtroil¡l cìt\ iltio0 r'i¡lr rpl)lic¡l)lc lo cu\l()ntrs tn u¡¡cr clet atiott z,rnur

N/A - lìîlc chss \rils rol u\lilblishc.l (lurjDg lh0 lrùri(¡l

Sourcc: North l\4arin ìVâlcr l)istrict lloar¡l ol' l)irr'tlu s r¡pptovcd talr' ordinanc¡s artd rcsolutions
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North Marin Water District
Ten Largest Water Users

Current lì'iseal Year and Five Years Agn"'

1o t>l"lotal lrY 2003/04

Schedule I

l'Y 2001ì/09 % ol"lÌrfal
I City o1'Ntrvutrr

2 Bl¡ck Point Partncrl'shlp

3 Novato IJnif icd School l)istlict
4 Co¡st Cualtl Splnìsh HoLrsing

.5 Filcnr¿rn's Funcl

6 N4caclou, ì)alk IIOA
7 lnclian Vallcy Goll'CoLn'sc

[J Wcstcln Oaks Vill¿r

!J lJionlal in l)harnlaccutìcnl

l0 l,anhlnr Villugc IìOA

Colsl GL¡anl S¡ranish Ilousirrg

lllack Point Pallnclsìrip

Cit¡r of \111''¡¡,,

Notrtto I lrtilirtl Sellool l )istt ir'l

lìilcrllrn's l:ìuncl

Lanlranr Vill.rgc I'IOA

Inclian Vrllc¡, Cìol1' (Ìlrlsc
Mcackru, Ì)ark llOA
Malin Vallcy Mobilc Country Club
\\/cstcr-n Ouks Villa

2.\ri
1.9'i,

|'9(/,,

l.ltl;,
0.'ltl.
0.1'/i,

0.7(l
0.5(ií,

(\.4()t,

0.4(i,,

2.ltìí,
1.8t,,

Ll(x,
t.tq.
0.uf
().ót,

0.6(i,

0.4(1,

(\.4()i,

0.4(ii,

l(1.9'/i

Soulce : NI\4Wl) 13illing S1,ste nr (l) Orìl), 'fliìcl( hacli 5 ycals

10.6(;1,
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North Marin Water District
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 9

Fiscal
Year

2000 $

2001

2002
2003
2004

2005

2006
200'7

2008

2009

Tnf¡l

Per Às a Share of
CapitaDebt

2,450,697
2,03s,718
r,s89,642
1,11',7 ,461

645,172
421,',168

396,243

363,593
335,80 l
312,878

246,642
237,970

1,231,069

|,2t1,225
3,360,808

12,527,765
15,338,404

I 5,458,61 8

16,020,049
l 6,856,896

2,69"1339
2,273,688
2,820,711
2,328,686
4,005,980

12,949,533
15,734,647

t5,822,211
l 6,35s,850
17,169,774

Fiscal Year

47.t5
39.O7

48.55
40.08
67.78

2|.94
252.97
245.96
258.39
271.24

Personal Income

0.07ía
O.061o

0.08Vo

0.067o

0.O9Vo

0.277o

0.301a

N/A
N/A
N/A

q
t

$20,000,000

$18,000,000

$t6,000,000

$14,000,000

$12,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000

$0

Source: North Marin Water District Audited Financial Statements

N/A - Data not available

"ñt 
.ñ .Fs 

".s "ñ" "S 
-,"t" 

"S "ñ. ,"s
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North Marin Water District
Pled ged-Revenue Coverage

Last Ten lìiscal Years
Nct Availablc l)cl¡l Scn,i<:r¡

lÌiscal Yc¿u'

Opclating
Ilcvcnues

Opcltting
Ilx¡rcnscs(l) I ntercsf 'l'of al

Schedule 10

Oovolage
llatio

( 1.92)
(2.56)
( 2.55)
0,05

( 0.06)
0.82
(() 91)

0.ri2
(Ll6)
(0.rJ¡i)

2(XX)

200 I

2002
2003

2004

2()u.5

2(X)6

2001

2008

2009

6,270,965
6,645.7 I 2

7,37 lì,3(r2
'l .729,651
rJ.545,299

e,54 5.204
l0.0lJ9.tì48
I I.iì4iì.037
t t .719.15'l
12,526.294

(7,400.7 82)
(8,1 42.04ó)
(tì.tiri2.tì56)

(7,ó95,93 I )

(rÌ,599.620)
( e,().i5.754)

t I 0.(¡05..11 7)
( I i.327,:)94)
( 12,53¡i,993)

(13.2,57,125)

llcvorues

(1,r29,817)
( 1,496,33¡1)

( 1.504.494)

33,726
(54,32 I )

'1tÌ9,.5 I0
(5 15,5ó9 )

:i20,44:l
(759,tì36)
(730,1r3 | )

hr3,440
t6I ,3¡i9
135.ó67

l(r4,435

1 07,843

195,453
-ì57 

9 ìrr

4l I .544
t 30,1 92

499,265

5ri9.700
5135,03e

590.979
6.56,494

1ì84,0(X)

594.595

568.(X)6

ó37.9ó7
6.54, 168

E)6.621

S

l)rincipal(r)

406,260
42 3,650

455.3 l2
,192.059

1'l6.l5T
l9e, 1.12

210.0t0
ll/1 1l)1

5 23.976

327.362

Notcs:
( J ) Opclatìng crl)cnscs crc[t<lc rlc¡tlcciirliorr cx¡tcnr;cl,

(2) Includcs ortl¡,nolnral principaÌ l)aynlcnts (docs not incÌurlc pa),nlents as a lcsull ol lefìnancing o1'dcbt)

Sor¡rcc: Nol{ll MariD W¿ìlcr I)istlict Audilc(l lrinancial Stutelllents

-5-5



North Marin Water District
Demographics and Economics Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 11

Novato 
(l) County of Marin

Ycar
Unemployment

Rate

1.61o

2.57o

3.9C('

4.91a

4.57o

4.01o

4.61o

4.41o

5.5V0

9.4ck

Personal

Income
(thousands of

dollars)

Personal

Income
per Capita

68.06 I

67,872

64,612

65, I s3

72.112

78,392

83,463

N/A

N/A
N/A

2000

200 I

2002

2003

2004

200.5

2006

2007

2008

2009

55,000

56,000

56,000

56,000

57,000

59,000

60,000

6l,000

61,000

6r,000

246,334 $

248,994

250,090

250,804

251,202

252,116

253,8 l I
255,080

257,406

N/A

16,765,'789

t6,899,722

16,158,935

16,340,'1t4

18,1t4,794

19,763,926

2t,184,396
N/A

N/A

N/A

Population - Novato

62,000

60,000

58,000

56,000

54,000

52,000

d

È

I

I
ilrlll ltl

""ñ 
.Fù "Þû .ÞÚ, .F." ñ """" 

.Þ$ 
".". ñ

300,000

250,000

200,000

r50,000

100,000

50,000

tr'iscal Year

Population - Marin County

Fiscal Year

Personal Income per Capita - Marin County

ññ ñ ,"ñ ,.s ñ ñ """" "F$ ñ .Þñ

H

$100,000

$80,000

$60,000

$40,000

$20,000

$0

".ñ "Fù .ÞS' 
""S 

ñ." ûS ññ ,.$ "Þ.. 
".."

Iiscal Year

Sources: California Departrnent of Finance, County of Marin, City of Novalo, quickfacts.census.gov

Real Estate Center dernographics and NMtilD Annual Report of Population Estirnale

Notes:

(l) District cstinated

N/A - Infornratioll not availâble 56



North Marin Water District
Operating and Capacity Indicators

Last Ten Fiscal Years Schedule 12

DeDartDent

l3
8

t2
3

t4

t4
fl

t2
3

l5

I4
li
t2
3
t5

t4
I
t2
3

1.5

t5

It

l2
4

r3

t5
9

t2
4
t6

tó
ll
ll
4

t7

t6
t0
't2

4

l6

57

1'l

t0
il
5

t6

5ti

l6
t0
l3
5

I5

50 52 52 52 52 56 55

Fiscal Year

Sourçcr North M¡rin W¡tcr l)istÍ¡ct Ovùrhcadcd l'ilyroÌl Wodishcùts I(n l)ay l)cúods lirding Junc 30

-58

65

60

55

50

45

3403 -¡s

ã. 30

rc 25
tÉ
L'"

¡ t5

Ë. t0

5

0

.ÊS .r.$' 
"s, ,S .uts ,S ",s" "S ,.S 

".ñ

MÑEIWIæ
EñlEtFtliilill[

Other Operating and Capacity Indicators

I¡iscal
Year

District Area Miles of
(Square Miles) Pipeline

Number of
Fire Hydrants

System

Storâge Capacity
(MG)

2000
200 l

2002
2003
2004

2005

2006

200'7

2008
2009

100

t00
100

100

100

100

t00
100

100

t00

298

30r
304

30'7

310

321

324

5-t l
34t
343

2,3t1
2,358
2,408
2.459

2,50t
2,568

2,670
2,713
2,749

2,762

29

30

30

34

34

34

-14

3-5

3-5

38

Source: North Malin Water District - Engineering Departrnent

57







CharlesZ. Fedak & Company
Certified Public Accountants

An Accountancy Corporation

6081 Orange Avenue
Cypress, California 90630
(714) 527-1818
(562) 598-6565
FAX (714) 527-9154
EMAI L czfco @czfcpa.com

Charles Z. Fedak, CPA, MBA

Paul J. Kaymark, CPA

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Stsndards

Board of Directors
North Marin Water District
Novato, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the North Marin Water District (District) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated August 31, 2009. We conducted

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Got,ernment Auditing Standards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on

the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect

misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the District's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or

report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there

is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the District's financial statements that is more

than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the District's internal control. A material

weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a

remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or
detected by the District's internal control. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting
was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily

identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be

material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance ønd Other Møtters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the

determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under

G ov e rnme nt A udit in g Standard s .

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management and

is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

August 31,2009
Cypress, California C/^flul,..Gs^ e?Is

N=" A.=-"*d*," ätfr*.Þ-
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